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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FETT
Turnover EERE
Jewellery retail KBZTE 14,516,326 14,045,322
Other businesses Hib %% 2,117,055 2,047,215
16,633,381 16,092,537
Profit attributable to equity holders RAFESEFBA
of the Company JEAE i A 876,418+ 742,176
Earnings per share BRREF
- Basic YN 129.5 cents fli  109.6 cents Ll
- Diluted -85 129.3 cents fli  109.6 cents Ll
Dividend per share FRIRE
— Interim — R Ef 9.0 cents 8.0 cents Il
— Final - RHi 42.0 cents 1l 35.0 cents 1l

Total dividend per share for the year

2EFRREER

51.0 cents 1l

43.0 cents 1L

Dividend payout ratio EELE 39%
Equity attributable to equity holders AREERRAA

of the Company JEIGHE e 10,125,075
Equity per share BikER $15.0 T

39%

9,037,898
$13.4 7T

Change
2%

+3%
+3%

+3%

+18%

+18%
+18%

+12%
+12%

* Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended * B2 _ZE—"+tH+-_A=+T—HILHF
31 December 2017 included a gain of HK$114 million on the disposal of B AAREmEAEAREEFB2IEY
shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. EEBRGREEMBRDARN G

114,000,000 8 T4 z5
Turnover Return on equity holders’ equity
Year ] BEBFEARES
F1H

2017 2117 16,633 %

2016 2,048 16,093 18

2015 2,346 19,069 16 ..15“.-4% AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

2,313 19,246 \

2014 14

2013 5,199 25,142 12.5%
0 5,000 10,000 15,000 20,000 _ 25,000 30,000 12 TS

HK$'M 270
W Jewellery retail HKEZE Other businesses Hfth 275 BEBT 10 \
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

Year EAERERFEAERERR 6

FH
2017 876 4
2016 742

2
2015 1,130
1082 0—_| | | | |

2014 : 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

2013 1,218 ;eg
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

In the year under review, 2017, the chill that had gripped Hong Kong
the previous few years began to warm up. Shop leases were being
renewed at more rational levels, and sales started to improve.

The turnover of the Group increased 3% after three years of
contraction. Profit for the Group climbed by 18% to HK$876 million,
which included a gain of HK$114 million from the disposal of a part of
the holding of shares of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Looking ahead, there are clouds on the economic horizon. Looming
trade disputes, interest rate rises, and regional tension could impact gold
price as well as consumer sentiments. Nevertheless, we will continue to
grow our network, offline and online, especially on the mainland. At the
same time, we will watch carefully our inventory and costs.

| wish to pay tribute to Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling, my uncle and fellow
director, who passed away in May 2017 at the age of 93. He and his
younger brothers Kwen Lim and Kwen Yum built up the business from a
few goldsmith shops into a company that was the first jewellery firm to
be listed in Hong Kong, in 1973. He had been at the helm of the Group
for 17 years before retiring as the Honorary Chairman in 1990. We owe
it to their foresight and hardwork for the Group that we have today.

| thank our shareholders, our customers and our staff for their loyalty
and support.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 84, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 40 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 71, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been with the Group for over 35
years, having been the Group General Manager and the Chairman
since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He is the Deputy Chairman of the
Council of the City University of Hong Kong, where he is also the Vice
Chairman of the Board of Management of the Community College of
City University. Mr. CHOW is appointed by the Home Affairs Bureau's
to its Advisory Committee on Arts Development as the Chairman as well
as the Performing Arts Committee under the Board of West Kowloon
Cultural District Authority as a member. He was made an Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves
as a Director of the Board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited, which is a not-for-profit organization. Mr. CHOW was a
member of the Shunde People’s Political Consultative Committee.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 61, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 30 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW
is a panel member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs
Bureau, HKSAR. He is also an expert member of the “Managing World
Cities” Programme of the Faculty of Social Sciences, University of Hong
Kong. He is a former member of the Central Policy Unit of the Hong
Kong Government (2009-2011) and a former council member of The
Better Hong Kong Foundation (2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in
the Central and Western District Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011).
He is an honorary member of the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’
Mess and the founding President of the Central and Western District
Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association of the Hong
Kong Fire Services Department. Dr. CHOW has been a voting member
of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory Board since 1997. Dr. CHOW is also a
member of the Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre and the Hong
Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 64, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an independent
non-executive director of seven other listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., Tongda Group Holdings
Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited, Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group Limited, Dongyue
Group Limited and China SCE Property Holdings Limited. Mr. TING is an
accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years of experience
in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan,
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 77, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 60, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become
the Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the
younger brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and a cousin of
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing. He has experience in real estate in
Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities include the marketing and staff
learning and development of the Group's jewellery business in Greater
China. He is a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Vice-
chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a Vice-chairman
of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, the Chairman of
the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory Committee, a member of
the Steering Committee on Qualifications Framework Fund of the
Education Bureau and an Executive Committee member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited. Mr. CHOW was a member of
the Guangzhou Municipal Tianhe District People’s Political Consultative
Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 63, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He is also a responsible officer approved by the
Securities and Futures Commission and serves as an independent non-
executive director of five other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
Yuexiu Property Company Limited, REXLot Holdings Limited, Chong
Hing Bank Limited (“Chong Hing”), Medicskin Holdings Limited and
Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE is also an independent
non-executive director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited, a holding
company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, aged 80, is an Independent Non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. Dr. LO is a member of various
committees of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council. Dr. LO is also
the Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 72, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of the University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organizations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Mr. Theodore TAM Shing Chi, CPA (Aust.), CPA, MBA, aged 59, is
the Company Secretary of the Company and the Group’s Chief Financial
Officer. Mr. TAM joined the Group in 2009 and has over 30 years of
experience in finance, accounting and management. Mr. TAM is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
the CPA Australia. He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration
from the Melbourne University, Australia. Mr. TAM's experiences
covered a variety of industries including auditing, business advisory
services with one of the Big Four accounting firms in Hong Kong as well
as the Regional Chief Financial Officer of one of the top three marketing
communication services companies in Asia Pacific.

Ms. Susan MAK Wei Yee, FCCA, CPA, aged 61, is the General
Manager of Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited. Ms. MAK joined the
Group in 2001 and has over 35 years of experience in accounting,
banking and finance. Ms. MAK is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 65, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China). Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over
40 years. He is well-experienced in sales management. Apart from
managing the retail operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is
also responsible for the development of operational strategies in Greater
China. He also serves as the Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Jewellers’
& Goldsmiths’ Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association.

Ms. Sandra SHEK Tsang, aged 49, is the Group’s Brand Director.
Ms. SHEK is responsible for overseeing the development of the Group’s
branding, product development, brand marketing, customer service and
corporate gift business. Prior to joining the Group in 2013, she was
the General Manager of various international jewellery and accessories
brands. Ms. SHEK has over 20 years of sales operation and marketing
experience in Greater China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

In 2017, the new Chief Executive of the HKSAR assumed office in the
first half in an election that was peaceful and orderly. In the second
half of the year, both the property market and stock market picked up
momentum, bringing forth positive consumer sentiment. The Renminbi
reversed its weak trend against the Hong Kong dollar, making the SAR
attractive to Chinese visitors once again. Year on year, mainland visitor
arrivals increased 3%.

China registered stronger economic growth than expected, reaching
a 6.9% GDP growth for the year. With liquidity concerns easing, RMB
exchange rates had stabilized.

The Group's turnover for 2017 increased 3% to HK$16,633 million.
The disposal of a part of the long-term holding of shares in Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited resulted in a gain of HK$114 million.
Including this amount, the Group’s overall profit attributable to equity
holders increased by 18% to HK$876 million.

Jewellery Retail

After dropping for three consecutive years, turnover returned to positive
growth with an increase of 3%. Jewellery retail accounted for 87% of
the Group’s turnover. Comparing to 2016, operating profit decreased
by 5% to HK$902 million, because in 2016 there was an extra gain of
HK$176 million that had resulted from the movement in the price of
gold.

Hong Kong and Macau

Sales registered a slip of 3%, inclusive of the effect of shop closures.
Same store sales growth (“SSSG") for the year was -2% mainly due to
soft turnover of gold in the fourth quarter.

Sales of gem-set jewellery improved in the second half and in the last
quarter reversed its downward trend since 2016.

During the year, four Chow Sang Sang shops and one watch branch in
tourist district were closed. Three new Chow Sang Sang shops and one
new watch branch established in non-tourist district.

Macau'’s tourist traffic also improved. Shops located in the shopping
arcades performed worse than main street shop.

Total shop rental expenditure was HK$132 million less than last year.
For lease renewals, rental adjustment ranged from +6% to -65%. There
are three large shops in tourist areas which are due for renewal in 2018.

Capital expenditure amounted to HK$37 million, most of which was for
new shops and refitting of shops.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Jewellery Retail (continued)

Mainland China
Total turnover rose 9% year-on-year to HK$8,031 million. In RMB terms,
total turnover rose by 11% and SSSG was +5%.

Gold sales was stronger in term of year-on-year performance, given a
low base in 2016 (2016 SSSG for gold was -13%). Jewellery had good
momentum for TH. However, due to a high base in 2H (2016 SSSG in
2H for jewellery was +16%), jewellery SSSG registered only a flat result
on a full year base.

Online sales continued to grow and accounted for about 14% of our
China sales. Gold products dominated the sales mix.

At the end of the year, there was a total of 422 shops located in 119
cities. New shops numbered 63, and there were 15 closings. 28 of the
new shops were set up in shopping malls.

With new openings and the refitting of 49 stores, capital expenditure
came to RMB148 million.

Taiwan
The retail sector remained weak. There was no significant change in the
results from the prior year.

Wholesale of Precious Metals

Turnover increased by 7% to HK$2,033 million. Operating profit
improved by 8% to HK$15 million.

Securities and Futures Broking

Market momentum gained strength further in the second half of 2017.
Hong Kong market turnover for the year increased by 32% with daily
turnover averaged at HK$88 billion (2016: HK$67 billion). Our turnover
increased by 34% with commission income increasing by over 31%,
reflecting increased participation of retail investors.

To further explore the opportunities in China, we entered into a joint
venture agreement with Harvest Fund Management Co., Ltd to form
a securities company in the PRC under the Mainland and Hong Kong
Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement (CEPA) framework in 2016.
The joint venture is in the process of applying for approval and licensing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Properties

The Group holds various properties that are being used for offices, shops
and factories. Rental income from investment properties amounted to
HK$11 million, less than 1% of the Group's turnover.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEC”)

As at 1 January 2017, the Group had 4,061,800 shares of HKEC,
received as distribution from the reorganization of the then exchanges
in year 2000. During the year, 500,000 shares were sold at a gain of
HK$114 million. As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 3,561,800
shares of HKEC and the unrealized gain on the holding amounted
to HK$854 million (2016: 4,061,800 shares with unrealized gain of
HK$744 million).

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its jewellery
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,200
million (2016: HK$1,283 million). Cash is mostly held in Renminbi or
Hong Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks with maturity dates
falling within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$6,285 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$909 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2017, the
total unutilized banking facilities amounted to HK$4,128 million (2016:
HK$4,318 million).

As at 31 December 2017, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,002 million and HK$1,070 million respectively, most
of which were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. All the
loans are repayable within three years. The gearing ratio was 20.5%,
based on total bank borrowings and bullion loans of HK$2,072 million
as a percentage of total equity of HK$10,125 million. The current ratio
of the Group was 4.

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local and
overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest
costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 24% of its bank loans
at fixed rates as at 31 December 2017, decreased from 29% as at 31
December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such, the
risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group maintains
an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural hedge
and cross currency swaps to minimize the foreign exchange exposure.
As at 31 December 2017, the borrowings denominated in New Taiwan
dollar amounted to NT$126 million.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

During the year, the Group successfully negotiated the release of all
properties from bank charge (2016: HK$217 million). As at 31 December
2017, listed equity investments of HK$719 million (2016: HK$660
million) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

A share option scheme is in place to provide incentives or rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group and enabling the
Group to recruit and retain valuable employees. Details of the scheme
can be found in note 35 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the total number of employees of the Group
was 9,120. There were 1,359 staff in Hong Kong and 7,521 staff in the
mainland.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook

We did see improvements in consumer sentiments in 2H of 2017.
However, a strong recovery is yet to be seen, especially in Hong Kong.
As we step into 2018, global markets are already anticipating interest
rate rise and hence deleveraging. International trade disputes seem to
be looming as well. We will need to continue our tight control over cost
and inventory.

In Hong Kong, though we will have a lower base to work with, we will
continue with the realignment of our network to match the change in
consumer pattern and preferences. Overall, we expect to reduce the
amount of floor space with no significant changes in number of shops.

In China, increasing sophistication in consumer behaviour provides
opportunity for growth via product and brand differentiation. As our
online competition heats up, we are putting more effort into offering
a seamless customer experience. We will continue the pace to open
around 50 new stores in the year, with emphasis on deepening of
penetration of urban markets.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, wholesale of precious metals, and securities and futures
broking. Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 47 to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 54 to 156.

An interim dividend of HK9.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
22 September 2017. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK42.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on 19
June 2018.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided in
the Chairman’s Message on page 3 and the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 9 to 13 of this annual report. No important event
affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the financial year
under review. Certain financial key performance indicators can be found
in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
35 to 46.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
23 to 34.

Such discussion forms part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-

LERERE

TXEINAEEBEREMRFEZE R

controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as WHEE EE- BENIEE Hxﬂx$%ﬁ12

extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified as

appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the EHT \*E)

audited financial statements.

Results

ES

Turnover
Jewellery retail
Other businesses

Operating profit
Share of profits of
associates, net

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the

Company

Non-controlling interests

EE S
RETE
H b5

z<«A /\f”
JEMEH S A7)
/Jmflj ! /?}15

BR 7% AL 1
s

FRE A
PR -

RN
BEA

IR R i

HE2EHD

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—HLFE

MBOVBRELERMBRELIZEE D
%ﬁ%ﬁ$%%%$%%%

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests

BE  AERFERBRRERS

Total assets
Total liabilities

Non-controlling interests

BEE
BaE
IR R
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2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET FAT FAT FETT
14,516,326 14,045,322 16,723,183 16,932,576 19,942,531
2,117,055 2,047,215 2,346,074 2,313,382 5,199,909
16,633,381 16,092,537 19,069,257 19,245,958 25,142,440
1,132,949 996,055 1,367,603 1,360,090 1,510,159
4,550 4,207 454 2,211 1,828
1,137,499 1,000,262 1,368,057 1,362,301 1,511,987
(261,081) (258,086) (237,737) (276,907) (288,428)
876,418 742,176 1,130,320 1,085,394 1,223,559
876,418 742,176 1,130,320 1,082,324 1,218,461

- - - 3,070 5,098

876,418 742,176 1,130,320 1,085,394 1,223,559

As at 31 December
R+=—HB=+—H

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHTT FHT FAT T
13,670,115 12,201,400 12,011,365 12,242,409 11,341,983
(3,545,040) (3,163,502) (2,933,450) (3,595,676) (3,323,509)
- - - - (83,574)
10,125,075 9,037,898 9,077,915 8,646,733 7,934,900
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$2,642,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of
the Group's properties are set out on pages 157 to 160 of this annual
report.

Share Capital

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorized or issued
share capital during the year.

Share Option Information

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
in note 35 to the financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and
prevailing industry practices.

The Company determined the emoluments of the directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 10 respectively to
the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$1,868,501,000, of
which HK$284,505,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 62% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 32%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling
(passed away on 27 May 2017)
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Mr. LEE Ka Lun*
Dr. LO King Man*
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, Dr. CHAN Bing Fun and Mr. CHUNG
Pui Lam shall retire by rotation at the 2018 AGM pursuant to the
Company’s bye-laws. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-election
at the 2018 AGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 41 to the financial statements, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company’s subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

Long positions:

EEnkOzER

RZBE—+F+-A=1+—H &%
MEEIED)SE 352 R AR BATIRF 2%
AR - RE EMBEITAZESET
BRI HHRETAI(RETA ) BAR
ARAINBEBEXSAERAR([HR
BBz S SEFRARAHEM
5B (TR B(ESZ RERGDE XV ED)
ERITRAR ZESNT

#a:

Number of shares held

BREA

Approximate

Personal Family Corporate Trustee percentage of

interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding

BRESD

Name of Directors EEHS BARE ZBER DEER EREAER A% BAL
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBELE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.20
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing &g - - - 136,271,595 " 136,271,595 20.13
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing BHKEE 19,711,680 70398 % 56,244,316 7 - 76,026,394 11.23
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing BRmELs 28,681,104 52,800 % 14244316 % 32,616,000 % 75,594,220 11.17

Please refer to the explanatory notes in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of those persons in the issued
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO

were as follows:

TERRREMALTRRORABRSG 2
B

R_E—+F+-A=1t—H0 RE&ES
FHEGRGDE 336 % ARRATRELZ
EaaMesAEEARARRSBITRAA
TSI

Long positions: #r:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held shareholding
BRERL
Z 514 FREE BOL
Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000 17.73
BERFAA
Schroders Plc Investment Manager 67,734,447 © 10.01
REEBA
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. Interest of Controlled Corporations 66,103,953 9.77
REEH AR R
Happy Inc. Beneficial Owner 66,000,000 9.75
EERAA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of 56,244,316 8.31
Controlled Corporation
ERBAARREH ARz R
Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932 7.96
RERERR AT BEHRFAA
Notes: Bz -
(1) 136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of (1) —E2#EFEEARNLNE 136,271,595 %
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee of Bn o B EBZET I ZEA M

the trust was Cititrust (Cayman) Limited, which held the interests in the

Company through the following

Name of companies

LAl

Everwin Company Limited
Golden Court Limited

Accordingly, Cititrust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have interests in
the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was deemed to

companies:

have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company.
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Cititrust (Cayman) Limited 3215 5.2 {53%
A EEA TR RREALNR 2 s

No. of shares held
FriRE A

120,000,000
16,271,595

It + Cititrust (Cayman) Limited #45 A4
136,271,595 Rl (n# 25 o A KA S 45 AR
BB ZRAT 136,271,595 BRI D HER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(2)

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

42,000,000 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited, a
company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Winston
CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the beneficiaries. The trustee
of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and, accordingly, it was deemed to
have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 56,314,714 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders Plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
(Singapore) Limited and Schroder Investment Management Limited held
31,047,447 shares, 33,853,000 shares and 2,852,000 shares in the
Company respectively, and was accordingly deemed to be interested in
the respective shares held by the aforesaid companies.

The Capital Group Companies, Inc. through its subsidiaries, namely Capital
Group Trust Company, Capital International Limited, Capital International
Sarl and Capital Research and Management Company held 1,077,700
shares, 72,072 shares, 7,007,781 shares and 57,946,400 shares in the
Company respectively, and was accordingly deemed to be interested in
the respective shares held by the aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited,
in which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling, a director of the Company who
passed away on 27 May 2017, had a 20% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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BEXHEN R

ASRBERAAKTESEZEED
FAARNE] 70,398 i & 52,800 B {7 o

Speed Star Holdings Limited# & A& 2 7
42,000,000 B fBL7) » 5% 72 A) 6 R AR AK B8 2
MERBERES -

Eimoling Company Limited# & & 2 &
14,244,316 1% B 15 » Speed Star Holdings
Limited }2 J& 72 A & &£ 9 Rl B % 1A A
44.5% 2 BRAHER

CWS Holdings Limited# A& & 2 7
32,616,000 /%15 * AR —EE2EE
REREE  BAKTEBZETZKL
/\&EEP BN © UBS TC (Jersey) Lid.
BRERZETA AUERAEEAD
Tsz,me,oooﬁxﬂxf i o

Eit - FEAK R A R E R B0 BIAR Ak

B XA 856,314,714 % K 75,955,996 % i

iz o AAREERERED BIHRA

%ﬁ$ 746,913,116 % £ 75,541,420 %
MRS
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Investment Management (Hong Kong)
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E/\ o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have
been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the 2018 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2018
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

About the Report

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide published by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “HKEx ESG Guide"”). The main purpose of the report
is to disclose the Group's current management approach, strategies
and performance in social and environmental responsibility as well as its
vision for sustainable development strategies.

The report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2017. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our jewellery retail and manufacturing
operations in Greater China. ESG performance indicators reported in
this report cover our main operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China
unless specified otherwise.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting
while our management is responsible for monitoring and managing
ESG-related risks as well as the effectives of our ESG risk management
and internal control systems.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group has established various means to communicate with internal
and external stakeholders comprising employees, customers, investors,
suppliers, trade associations, institutions and charitable organizations
that we support. The channels used to communicate with these
stakeholders include online questionnaires, interviews, feedback forms
and courtesy visits.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

About the Report (continued)
Materiality Analysis

The Group has conducted a focused stakeholder engagement exercise,
with the purpose to identify material aspects within different subject B SERNTRANGETHIISAEEN
areas. Stakeholders were invited to assess various ESG aspects with

reference to the HKEx ESG Guide.

The result of the exercise prioritized ESG subject areas and aspects in

the following order:

ARRRE(H)

#EEEET

B RS 1 AT -

Subject Area
TEHE

Most material aspects within the subject area

EFRABRNEE

Social — Operating practices
e - 2ETh

Social - Employment and labour practices
e - ERRSITA

Environmental
RIE

Social - Community

HE - HE

Ensuring service and product quality
BRREREREZR

Protecting customer data
REZFEHR

Providing a safe working environment
REEZ 2 TIERE
Ensuring employees’ occupational safety and health

EREENBELZ2BRE

Energy and wastewater management
BER K KE R

Contribution to community development

HERERMNER

While we strive for overall balance in the disclosure of the Group's ESG
initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on issues which are
considered more material to our business.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes BRABERAEREREG - B
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. BE . B I FHHIRANE SRe

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed
are monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the
presence of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards; and (c)
conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

EETH

Em B ERIREEE

BETIBEETER

Fo
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued)

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests, using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by the
Group's externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong and
Shunde. Workmanship inspection is conducted at several stages on all
products as they go through the supply chain.

Management has established policies to guide the advertising and
labelling of our products such that they are in line with applicable
laws and regulations. All products are labeled with tags containing
information on product specification. Moreover, in conformance with
the Group’s Code of Conduct which defines our ethical consideration
to observe and protect intellectual property rights, the management has
established systems in place to ensure that our creations and designs are
copyrighted, patented or trademarked where necessary.

Should there be enquiries or complaints, the Group has a dedicated
team of customer relations personnel for quick response. Customers
can reach the team via service hotlines, social media platforms including
Facebook, Weibo, WeChat, QQ and LIVE CHAT. In addition, all shop
staff are trained to handle queries on products, maintenance and repair.
All customer correspondence through the proper channels are logged
and documented.

BE -HERERRE
“ETRI(H)

EREERREEE(E)
AEBBIEEREERE  BTRE®RR
MRATZARTERMERERF - A%
BREERIBERIILIINIRTNER
= AEBRRE AR RBE R
Al AEmBBHERR  KETZE
TERE -

EEEFRRABRERRS MEE -
KEMTRERARZRAS - FBEERD
B H DI EmRBEOIRE - I AFA
AKENTATH  EFFIHAREET
PRENZEERNETEE  EEERY
HE - BAEANEENEIELRIE S
PR H AR - BFRIKAEIR -

AEEREEERARARERBHOEN -
SERAROESHREF - BRI EBR
BEK R X HE T & (83 Facebook
01~ 15 - QQ R LIVE CHAT) B fIH9
BEREL LR o WO FTEEHEIHERE
BEBER REXEEABNEI - T
BERPAAEHEABEERENSFRE
B -

Unit Products Recalled in 2017
By “E-tFEWER
Total Products Sold or Shipped subject to Percentage 0
Recalls for Safety and Health Reasons B
s kiEFERERWNERSE 6
BHERNENEREE
Unit Complaints Received in 2017
By Rt FRERF
Product and Service related Complaints Received Number 114
BREBRHEMRRBHRH RE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Protecting Customer Data

The Group places great emphasis on customer relations management in
order to maintain a base of loyal customers and to attract new ones. In
order to protect the privacy of our customers, we collect and maintain a
minimal amount of their personal details in the database. The database
is well protected both on policy and technological terms. Even within
the Group, customer data are released strictly on a need-to-know basis,
and the same will not be released without prior consent to outside
parties or even to units within the Group that are not the original data
collectors. Relevant details of our privacy policy are readily available on
our website.

Supply Chain Management

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply-chain
management policies which are benchmarked against the highest best
practice principles in the trade. Diamond suppliers are required to
provide documented proof of the ethical provenance of their goods.
All materials and finished goods are monitored as stated earlier in
paragraph of product responsibility and service quality and only those
that passed the tests are accepted. Suppliers of substandard goods
and materials are subject to a system of warnings, temporary or even
permanent blocking of orders. Suppliers are similarly monitored for the
timeliness of their delivery.

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers in order to avoid the risks inherent in over-reliance on
suppliers.

During the year, we were not aware any incidents of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group,
concerning health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods redress.

Anti-corruption

In compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and other
relevant laws and regulations, our employees are required to follow the
rules stipulated in our Employee Handbook, which provide for definitions
of permissible and impermissible giving and receiving of advantages and
gifts. Employees are required to report receipts and subsequent disposal
of gifts. Our employees are also required to follow the Group’s Code
of Conduct, which defines appropriate methods in handling conflict of
interests.

Management has arranged trainings to employees on their expected
conduct upon the identification of potential incidences of corruption
or bribery within the workplace. Under the whistleblowing policy,
employees are protected if they submit signed reports on suspicious
activities. During the year, there were no reported cases of corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices

Training and development programs, employee welfare and relationship
building initiatives have always been important to our business.

Employment

Being an equal opportunities employer, the Group and its management
embrace diversity in its workforce and ensure that the employees are
not discriminated against due to their ethnicity, age, gender, marital
status, religion or belief. Meanwhile, the use of child or forced labour
is strictly prohibited by the Group. Human Resources Department
verifies candidates’ identity through checking their identity documents
as well as relevant certificates of proof. On the other hand, the Group
requires employees to comply with its code of conduct as defined in the
Employee Handbook. The Handbook is available on the Group’s intranet.

Employee Welfare

The Group maintains an open and standardized framework for
employment, salary review, and promotion. Apart from basic salary,
employees are rewarded with performance-based bonuses. Benefits
such as paid vacation leave and insurance are commensurate with, or
better than local practices and legal requirements. Relevant policies are
fully communicated to the employees through the Employee Handbook
which is available on the Group’s intranet.

To strengthen overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group, the Group has introduced a mobile application
"CChat”. The application allows employees to receive updates on
corporate and training information, as well as personal exchanges.

Management level of the Group is required to regularly review
employees’ goal alignment, job performance and working conditions to
ensure that the employees’ personal development and job performance
improvement are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance
procedures are in place for the protection of employees. Personal
details of employees are strictly protected. During the year, we were
not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
employment matters.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first” to
create an accident-free working environment for the employees. Safety
risks in various facilities have been identified, assessed and managed
with corresponding preventive measures. Regular safety inspections
are being conducted as follow up. Safety and health-related awareness
building and training are conducted for the benefit of all staff.

During the year, we have complied with the relevant laws and
regulations relating to providing safe working environments at all
locations of operations and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

= (== =]
EERS TFRI(E)
T2 R
AEERFRE2E— BHAXINR

8 AEREZETEIINIERE - A&
BE#HM  THREESERENLZERE
B WEBMEEREREEEERR -
AEBTHETLEREERBRERE -
VTERITRERBEEHEI - ARES
BT-

FR - AKECETHBEZEZRAN ¥
REABEEMREELT 2 THRRERRE
EERSZBEMERE -

Unit Lost Days in 2017
B TE-LFEARIERE
Lost Days due to Work-related Injury Day 288.5
ATHEEATERS A
People Involved in
Unit Fatality Cases in 2017
B TE-LEFRTERIRAR
Fatality Cases Number of People 0
RTER N
Development and Training R R
The Group and its management oversee the design and delivery of AREBNHEEBEERL T LIRHZHEE

internal induction and refresher training courses on numerous topics.
These topics include customer service, sales technique, product
knowledge, employee supervision, financial risk management and
leadership, all of which are designed to support staff at various ranks
and functionality to facilitate their daily work and business operations.
An online training platform, “Channel T" is designed for staff to access
a variety of information for personal and professional development
through training softwares and videos. Occupational safety and health
training materials are also available on the platform.

In addition to utilizing internal training resources, the Group subsidizes
employees who require professional qualification or advanced studies
for specific roles and caters to their specific training needs by third-party
professional training. The Group and its management are dedicated to
the continuous development of our employees’ capabilities and we value
the personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our best
talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment

The Group has issued an internal environmental pledge for
environmental sustainability, where the Group fulfills its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. Furthermore, employees were encouraged to follow
suit in their private life.

During the year, we were not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on our Group. We summarize our efforts in managing emissions of
water, air and waste in the paragraphs below.

Wastewater Management

The Group's major use of water occurs at its plants in the course of
manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the major plant in Shunde, there
is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization and sedimentation
of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to discharge into
the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled by licensed
operators. At the smaller plants wastewater is put in safe storage for
removal by licensed operators at regular intervals.

BRiR

AEERITIEREEELERARNAS
A BR R A B M N ERARAGE
plgn - AEERIFE TR AREPHHORE
MABE  HERAMBELYE  THR
BETEMALEFHLRER—ED

FAAREXIATERMEHRFARAK
SEERBATENRERFTEREN -
ASEEEEEK  REFMRERY.
S|REPALT -

BKEHE

AREETERREKRERLEREARK -
BKAgEEER B SECEmhED
B ERENTIEMERZAHYEKETT
R ERET RIURARE o KRR
BRANREHRETAEBBE B
AEFRREEZERE - £/)EARER -
RPEBEKZERT  RNREREREER
EHEHE o

Total Volume of Effluent

Type of Emission Unit Discharged in 2017*
295 €0zl B “ER - FH Bk RES
Wastewater Tonnes 23,700
EK WE

* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * B AR ST R

Air Emissions Management SRR E

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids, HEREELNT LY s g -
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are g HitEYESBRHE - HIAH

equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters, to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. The Shunde plant has airflow control designed so that
cooled room air would not be drawn into the scrubber systems along
with noxious emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products. Customers
will find our boxes useful for storing other items if not used for their
jewellery. It is ingrained into our culture to reuse suitable containers and
boxes for transportation.

BE -HERERRE

B ()

BEEYEE
ARERREEBRN S —BHRRBER
B AREGBAERIEREANERE
Ko AEERFNENHE  BRAFRAE
oy BEMAEEFEAMREERE M
REXREMBRMTERSBEOR R LA
¥ ERAPRATER UL

Type of Packaging Material Unit Amount of Material Used in 2017~

BERUBER B “E-LFHRAYEE

Paper Box Tonnes 333

A=) Wa

Jewellery Pouch Tonnes 7

NEIRE R W

Paper Bag Tonnes 187

R W

Other materials (e.g. plastic, leather, Tonnes 27
wood, and etc.) W

Hi e (PIIn2R « K% - AME)

*

figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

There are other measures for small savings but heightened awareness.
To cut down the use of paper cups, all staff members are encouraged
to use glass and cups for their tea and water; and wherever feasible
customers and guests are served with those as well. To reduce
the use of printing paper, the Group and its management require
departments to check out their own paper and record total usage.
There are guidelines to encourage the use of email and e-chat for
company business. Employees receive notices to check online their salary
statements in lieu of paper slips.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for several years and have actively participated
in the recycling of resources used in our operations. All recyclables are
collected and handled by recognized recycling organizations.

Where options of recycling or reuse have been fully considered, the
Group uses authorized or licensed contractors in the disposal of general
waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing factories or
at our offices.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RE -HERERKRE

Environment (continued) RIE(E)

Waste Management (continued) EEYEIE(E)
The following tables outline waste generated and recycled where it is TEREAEEEBAZTEEE KRB 2 BE
materially produced in our operations. Common office materials such as Y TABE—RBHLAEYWR KRR

paper and toner cartridges are also included. BHE -

Amount of Waste in 2017

—E-tEERYE

Type of Hazardous Waste Unit Generated

RERREY B 33

Highly Acidic Waste Tonnes 0.4
Sliqidz3y) M

Others (e.g. waste with lead, inorganic Tonnes 2.6
cyanide, mercury, organic solvent) M8

Hiogy (Gl ineEy - BRECEY -
KR - BHBRER)

Amount of Waste in 2017*

“E-LFRRYE~
Type of Non-Hazardous Waste Unit Generated Recycled
BEERY B EXE Bl i
Paper Tonnes 50 29
o W
Toner Cartridge Pieces 3,392 484
ma &
Generated
Ex
General Waste Tonnes 15
—REEY 1
* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * B FEEIRENCEEY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management

The Group has proactively adopted measures to minimize the
environmental impacts caused by its business operation. Management
observes and seizes opportunities for overall reduction in energy use
across the Group. Office and factory and even shop lighting (when
feasible) standardize on energy saving lights and LED lights. Billboard
and exterior lighting at street level stores are controlled by timer.

We have signed up as participants to the External Lighting Charter
organized by the Hong Kong government, thereby committing to
switching off shop lightings by 11 pm. To foster our employees’

BE -HERERRE

RIE(E)

Ez/ﬁﬁéqﬁgff

REEBRGRAZIERER  S2REEH

EEHRENTE - EEEJ‘&E%X&TETF%E
SEHIOAEERENGERERE BHAE

ﬁﬁ%MiEﬁE AR THER N — 2
FRERBEE M LED I - M B & 18 R E 5D

Fghge
RIAKEL BERasEH

BMEEXAEBEBNES N FINEAY
M2 mEE  AEPE L1 EREERE
BEMHEE - T ﬁﬁ\ﬁﬂaw?ﬁﬁéﬁﬁlﬂﬁm&

awareness, tips and information on carbon reduction and energy EigeR)/NBEEME R AI{RE B T ¥ HRE
conservation are disseminated on our intranet. EEMRH
Intensity in 2017
(Tonnes/
Total Emission HK$1m Turnover)
in2017* Z—E—t&%E
Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emission Unit —E—tF (W,
BERBHHEE By HYHEr —EEBRTEER)
Scope 1 - Direct Carbon Emission Tonnes 93
#HE1 - EEREERE i
1.3
Scope 2 - Indirect Carbon Emission Tonnes 18,345
#E 2 - MERERE i
* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number Y B FEEERENCEEY

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that
are owned or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for
stationary and mobile combustion.

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are a
consequence of the activities of our operations, but occur at
sources owned or controlled by another entity (Scope 2), including
purchased electricity.

Where possible, such as at the purpose-built Shunde plant, savings on
air-conditioning are achieved by taking measures to mitigate the heating
effect of the afternoon sun, to reduce heat generation by eliminating
excess lighting, and to isolate furnaces and other heat and emission
dissipating equipment from room air.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

Energy savings, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered by
Management as part of the design specifications in the erection of the
Shunde plant; they will be so considered for any building construction in
future.

BE -HERERRE

B ()

BEFREREE (&)

JIIE1 R S B 2% HW%%%EEE%’IE%%?&
EREAER - BOMAK BOHFREE
ﬁﬂﬂﬁéﬁi&i‘“ﬁ CENRE - BROBT
BETREBRABAAINEE -

Intensity in 2017

Total (GJ or Tonnes/
Consumption HK$1m Turnover)
in2017* Z—E—tHEBE
Type of Resource Unit —E—tF (FREESM,
ERER By HEME: —BEBTEER)
Energy Electricity Megawatt Hour 22,352 -
R EW (MWh)
KR
Gigajoule (GJ) 80,468
THEE
Natural Gas Gigajoule (GJ) 1,677
RAR TREFE 5.7
Liquefied Petroleum Gigajoule (GJ) 7
Gas THKEE
RILERER
Water Freshwater Tonnes 96,786 6.7
7K V2UN U
* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * HFEEERELCEEH
Community Involvement HESH
The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster K‘ilﬁﬁ’giﬁ HREBEYRELEM
social harmony and development, and is simply good corporate ’Lb&?‘)?% EEEASEERTRILED
citizenship. RREME-
Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development HEBMRXEZE

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for several years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving program sponsorship.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organizations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The list of organizations included Hong Kong
Love & Care Charity Foundation, St. James' Settlement People’s Food
Bank, Hear Talk Foundation, Yan Chai Hospital and Yan Oi Tong.

Recognizing the importance of quality education for young people, the
Group provides scholarship funds to the City University of Hong Kong
and the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts.

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations, and organizations for
child and elderly care. For example, we have organized visits to elderly
to show our love and care, fundraising and goods donation events for
underprivileged students and children, and visits to donor centre to
promote importance of blood donation, etc.

To encourage participation from our colleagues, the Group sponsors the
activities and encourages interested employees to become volunteers.
Employees are eligible to apply for volunteer leave, which further
encourages the participation of meaningful charitable work.

Governance

The Group recognizes the importance of good governance above and
beyond compliance with regulatory requirements. The Group may from
time to time be subject to changes in applicable laws and regulations
in the jurisdictions where the Group conducts operations. Such matters
could have an adverse impact on our ease and freedom of operation,
financial wellbeing and the results of our business. Accordingly,
compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations, in particular those have significant impact
on the Group. Management is responsible for ensuring that the conduct
of business is in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees. The
Company has complied throughout the year 2017 with the applicable
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), except for the derivation from a code provision
A.2.1 of the Code and which is explained in the relevant part of this
report.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises nine Directors, of whom three Executive Directors
("ED"), two Non-executive Directors (“NED") and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INED"). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange.

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 4 to 7 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each INED written annual confirmation
of their independence as required under the Listing Rules and therefore
the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.

Re-election of Directors

All NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for specific terms of not more
than three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and re-election in annual
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Code and the
Company’s bye-laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines that follow the
Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development by attending briefings/seminars/workshops, and/or reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills and provided their records of training to the Company:
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BEETRERRFCRELER -

FNEFFERUFER/MIE/ T
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SEBERRE  UBRREFRRZZHH
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£

Topics on training covered ™

Name of Directors EEnR RE Y EEm
Executive Directors: HITEE !
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing R e (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing AR B (@), (b) & (d)
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing AT E (@), (b), (0) & (d)
Non-executive Directors: EHTES .
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling * AESEE" N/A 7R3
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam @kt (@), (b) & (d)
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES:

Directors:
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FREEE (@), (b), (0) & (d)
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun PRINENEE £ (@), (b) & (d)
Dr. LO King Man ERXEL (@), (b), (c) & (d)
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung 2 EEEE (@), (b) & (d)

" Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling passed away on 27 May 2017
Notes:

(a) requlatory compliance and corporate governance

(b) finance, law and taxation

(c) global and local financial market, investment and business environment
(d) other information relevant to the Group or its business
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group’s businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Group and the

Stock Exchange.

The participation of members of the Board in the three committees and
their attendance record of the relevant meetings in 2017, are set out as

follows:

>
V3
mR
o
S
off

ExZEE

EXed-EZEeXE DHREKRE
Be FHZEGRRELZES  HAH
BB ESHNAKE LB B -

EEEREN-HEER I SRRRS
K-t FEBe R RRERS
m :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

SHREERY/BTRE
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BN gzg ENZE® HMZEE REZEE RREEAE
Executive Directors: HiTEE!
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing K &

Chairman and Group General Manager IEEEE R 44 - - - 11
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing B B 3/4 - - " 0N
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing AAREE

Group Deputy General Manager S 4/4 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:

Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling* FELEE

Honorary Chairman EREZER 012 - - - 0/0
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE 3/4 22 /1 - 1
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam BEMITE 4/4 212 " i 17
Independent Non-executive Directors: B H{1TES
Mr. LEE Ka Lun PFBRE

Chairman of the three Committees ZHZES2tE 44 22 n 11 11
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun BEiREE 4 4/4 212 I 17 171
Dr. LO King Man ERNEL 34 22 ”n N mn
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung AvErE 4/4 212 n " n
—  The Director is not a member - EFEUHKE

* Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling passed away on 27 May 2017

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.
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Board Committees (continued)

Audit Committee

The principal duties are to monitor the integrity of the Group's
financial statements, oversee the Group's financial reporting systems,
internal control and risk management procedures and the relationship
with the external auditor. Members possess appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or management expertise as required under
the Listing Rules.

In 2017, the Committee reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and
practices, development in accounting standards and associated impacts
on the Group, risk management issues, audit findings, compliance,
strategy summary and financial reporting matters, and the effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal control systems. The
Committee discussed the above matters, where appropriate, with
management and external auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The principal functions include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board for approval on the remuneration policies and packages for
Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration package of
Directors and senior management, staff bonus scheme and Directors’
fees. It also reviewed the authorization to the grant of share options
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company.

Nomination Committee

The main duties include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.
In carrying out the responsibility for identifying suitably qualified
candidates to become members of the Board, the Committee gives
adequate consideration to the board diversity policy. Its aim is to ensure
that the Board is appropriately constituted with a balance of knowledge,
skills and experience.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board. It also assessed and confirmed
the independence of an INED, and recommended to the Board the
nomination of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, Mr. LEE Ka Lun and Dr. LO
King Man for re-appointment as Directors by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2017.
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Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in August 2013. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group's corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
regional experience. The ultimate decision is based on the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board of Directors is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the
latest requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

In 2017, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for
overseeing the preparation of the Group's financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results and
cash flows in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.
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Financial Reporting (continued)

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's financial statements are set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 47 to 53 of this annual
report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its reappointment as the
Company's external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
for 2017 were as follows:

Audit i
Taxation 1%
Others Hh

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate risk management
and internal controls are in place to safequard the Group’s assets
and manage risks. Policies and procedures are designed for providing
reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the
Group's objectives.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyze, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated and
properly documented as part of the effort to manage risks.
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as follows:

AEFHE T BRI TIEERNE
W

J Retail market suffers from the uncertainties in the global economic
and political environment and the weakened consumer demand.
We see opportunities to grow and increase customer loyalty via
product and brand differentiation

J The Group's operations will be affected by multiple risk factors
related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery, wholesale of
precious metals, and securities and futures broking. Policies and
procedures are designed to minimize the risks

J Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory
compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks

J Details of financial risk management objectives and policies can be
found in note 44 to the financial statements
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably guarantee the
compliance of its operation and management with regulations and
laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial report
and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness of
operating activities and promote the realization of development strategy
of the Group.
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included the
following:

FEERBEZTEAHFEREEUT
R

An Internal Audit team conducts reqular audits of different aspects
of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit Committee

All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled, and
verification and cross-checking with source documents procedures
are in place

Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
securities and futures broking business and wholesale of precious
metals

Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on
an annual basis

Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure are
subject to regular budgetary review

Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems

The Group strictly prohibits unauthorized use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorized staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group
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The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2017, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget. There were no significant areas
of concern identified during the year.
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Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Group and the Stock Exchange.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognize performing staff by providing
a completive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
shops, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials are crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.

Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy with the objectives of ensuring a transparent
and timely communication with shareholders and other stakeholders
via various means, has been established. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the Board and
the Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
the three Committees and other members of the respective committees
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.

Investor communication
Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Group disseminates
timely information on its websites to investors and consumers alike.

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group’s strategies and operations.
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Corporate Communication (continued)

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group's intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company
to request for an SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards, proposing a person for election as a director, please refer to
the procedures available on the website of the Group.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

s
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 156, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B BE R &

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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B BE R &

Key audit matters

HEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZEHEFTPROMELN

Inventory provision
FEREE

The Group manufactures and sells jewellery products,
which are subject to changing consumer demands and
fashion trends. Significant judgement was required to
assess the appropriate level o? inventory provision for
these jewellery products which might be sold below cost.
This took into account factors that included but were
not limited to, economic outlook, sales forecasts and the
forecast market value of raw materials for the jewellery
products.

The write-down of inventories to net realizable
value and the carrying amount of inventories (net of
inventory provision) amounted to HK$3,653,000 and
HK$7,489,574,000, respectively.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision
are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EEEARESERR BRER S EE R B EGEE
S AEREN L ERKARREE GRS 2 Al
FEREKTAENE AL - EH R (BBEATER A
EAE  RERARESREES S BB DEEAE -
WG EETRREERE SEEEIREEER) ST
#3,653,00078 7T M 7,489,574,000 /87T °

7T
EEERE 2 E—SFFRRARGEMBRENH

Friant
W
s
i

Valuation of investment properties

REWFEIE

The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties
in Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which were
valued at HK$322,013,000 as at 31 December 2017.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group’s investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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We reviewed the bases adopted by the Group for its
inventory provision policy with reference to historical
inventory losses, and evaluated whether the inventory
provision was made in accordance with the policy. We
obtained an understanding of management’s processes
for the initial identification of slow moving or obsolete
jewellery products. We also assessed the inventory
provision by comparing the selling prices of the finished
goods to their costs.

In addition to the above, an independent gemologist
was engaged by the Group to assess the net realizable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologist, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologist, we
also evaluated the net realizable value with reference to
independently published sales prices.
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We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also assessed the related disclosures in the notes to the
financial statements.
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B BE R &

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BE R &

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chi Ying.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS meBERE
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE_Z—+F+-_A=T—HILFE

2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
B sE FTHERT FHETT
TURNOVER —E 2 5
Jewellery retail KEZTE 14,516,326 14,045,322
Other businesses H b 27 2,117,055 2,047,215
16,633,381 16,092,537
Cost of sales HEKA (12,642,506) (12,042,321)
Gross profit EA 3,990,875 4,050,216
Other income, net Halg A - FE 174,038 78,009
Selling and distribution costs HENDHER (2,569,970) (2,594,159)
Administrative expenses THER (544,357) (517,629)
Other losses, net HiEE  #E (541) (1,342)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2 e
investments 113,948 -
Finance costs W% ER 7 (31,044) (19,040)
Share of profit of an associate JE GBS 1 B A 19 4,550 4,207
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR R 6 1,137,499 1,000,262
Income tax FTiS R 11 (261,081) (258,086)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO &R EE AERL
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY FREF 876,418 742,176
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZAARIEREE AESL
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BREF 13
Basic HAR 129.5 cents 1l 109.6 cents 1l
Diluted s 129.3 cents 1l 109.6 cents 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FE2ERER

Year ended 31 December 2017 HE -+ +-_A=+—HIFE
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FTHERT FHETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERRA 876,418 742,176

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Ht2mhs/ (FE)

(LOSS)
Items that may be reclassified AETRENIEZEER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHER:
Available-for-sale investments: AEHERE -
Changes in fair value NEEEEY 20 224,830 (61,779)
Reclassification adjustment for B0 RHEE
gain on disposal included in the meanike
consolidated statement of HE W=
profit or loss 20 (113,948) -
110,882 (61,779)
Exchange differences: PE N %R
Exchange differences on translation BMEEEVZIERZE 385,025 (331,198)
Reclassification adjustment upon HHE—RHMBARIERZ
deregistration of a subsidiary BN AR = (1,172)
385,025 (332,370)
Item that will not be reclassified HETEEHPBEBRER
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHER:
Revaluation upon transfer of a METRBFERT
leasehold land and building to REMERSER
an investment property 14 3,652 -
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  FREM2EE /(FE)
for the year 499,559 (394,149)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR A AR EH AN
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY FRZHEKZAE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 1,375,977 348,027
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017

)

FHMRR R
R_E—tF+-A=1—H

2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
By aE TET TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - S N R R 14 762,321 704,191
Investment properties REME 15 322,013 295,573
Prepaid land lease payments Taf Tt E I 16 11,932 11,356
Intangible assets BREE 17 271 271
Other assets /H\@EE 18 210,435 240,423
Investment in an associate NS N R ZIRE 19 32,453 28,388
Available-for-sale investments —H,\Hj%}xA 20 874,000 763,180
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBEE 33 22,213 13,381
Total non-current assets BIERHEE 2,235,638 2,056,763
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 7,489,574 6,557,877
Accounts receivable FEUER R 22 920,088 791,681
Receivables arising from securities and BHRNHERILEE L
futures broking FE U BR ZX 23 984,906 826,332
Prepayments, deposits and BNTE  RER
other receivables H fth e U BR 3R 24 307,221 224,250
Investments at fair value through profit BAVTEBEEEE
or loss K& 25 17,073 33,078
Derivative financial instruments TEemI A 30 - 18
Tax recoverable AU EIHIE 41 2,590
Cash held on behalf of clients REFRBERS 26 515,659 426,002
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRE 26 1,199,915 1,282,809
Total current assets BREEE 11,434,477 10,144,637
CURRENT LIABILITIES k=R
Accounts payable FETBRX 27 122,071 263,387
Payables arising from securities and BEMPERLELZ
futures broking FERTBRZR 28 574,048 419,717
Other payables and accruals Hitn R R EETIEE 29 464,034 343,237
Derivative financial instruments TEERIA 30 4,394 558
Interest-bearing bank borrowings qu,\ﬁEﬁféf?y\ 31 488,547 496,268
Interest-bearing bank borrowings arising %&Hﬂfﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’_fcz
from securities and futures broking FTRIRITER 31 60,000 230,000
Bullion loans ELBIEE 32 1,069,873 756,390
Tax payable FERTIIE 93,905 96,325
Total current liabilities BREAE 2,876,872 2,605,882
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 8,557,605 7,538,755
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EERABES 10,793,243 9,595,518
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

FEBBMRR R
R-F—tH+-A=1+—H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing

Director

BKER
g%

2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FExT FET
*REEE
STRERITTER 31 453,656 360,154
RERIEEE 33 214,512 197,466
BIERBAE 668,168 557,620
EEFE 10,125,075 9,037,898
R
BETRA 34 169,230 169,230
&t 36 9,955,845 8,868,668
b 10,125,075 9,037,898
Winston CHOW Wun Sing & fe Bk
Director B5E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Year ended 31 December 2017

Issued Share
capital premium
ERITRA RS E
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE THER THER
At 1 January 2016 RZZ—R~"&E—H—H 169,230 1,051,502
Profit for the year F A A - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FAEMEEESE :
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHEREZ
investments NEEEE 20 = -
Exchange differences on translation BREELAZERER = =
Reclassification adjustment upon i 4|5 YNCIL
deregistration of a subsidiary BN EAR - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNZENHEE = =
Equity-settled share option arrangements Bt E BT 35 - -
Transfer from retained profits 8 aRBEH = =
Dividends declared and paid during the year — FRT kK& IR L 12 = =
At 31 December 2016 R-E—RF+-A=1—H 169,230 1,051,502*
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—A—H 169,230 1,051,502
Profit for the year F N A - -
Other comprehensive income for the year: FAEMEERE
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AEHERE
investments RNEEEE 20 - -
Reclassification adjustment for gain on ENOBEARERABREY
disposal of available-for-sale investments HERHEEERE 2K
included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss 20 = =
Exchange differences on translation BEELVERES - =
Revaluation upon transfer of a leasehold land ~ THE 1 ith i FEE T
and building to an investment property REMERER 14 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZHENEEE - =
Equity-settled share option arrangements RS s BRERH 35 - -
Transfer from retained profits EERE R - -
Dividends declared and paid during the year ~ FRE R MRS 12 — =
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+-_A=+—H 169,230 1,051,502*

5 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$9,955,845,000 (2016: HK$8,868,668,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2017
AELESEHRBAERRAA 2017 4 3§



BARBRDE
BE-T—tE+-A=+—AILER

Difference
Leasehold arising from
land and acquisition
Share buildings Investment of non- Exchange
option revaluation revaluation controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained Total
reserve reserve reserve interests reserve funds profits equity
WeE I 2 AR
HELTHR RRER
BRERE RBTEMFHRE REELREE BEECEE HELBREE RES REEF BER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TET TET TET TET TET TER
(Note 35) (Note 36)
(Bf#E35) (PM%E36)
- 339,449 822,932 4,897 48,101 242,698 6,399,106 9,077,915
_ - - = = - 742,176 742,176
- - (61,779) - - - - (61,779)
- - - - (331,198) - - (331,198)
_ _ - = (1,172) - - (1,172)
- - (61,779) - (332,370) - 742,176 348,027
4,570 - - - - - - 4,570
- - = - - 51,118 (51,118) -
- - - - - - (392,614) (392,614)
4,570* 339,449+ 761,153* 4,897 (284,269)* 293,816*  6,697,550* 9,037,898
4,570 339,449 761,153 4,897 (284,269) 293,816 6,697,550 9,037,898
- - - - - - 876,418 876,418
- - 224,830 - - - - 224,830
- - (113,948) - - - - (113,948)
- - - - 385,025 - - 385,025
- 3,652 - - - - = 3,652
- 3,652 110,882 - 385,025 - 876,418 1,375,977
9,045 - - - - - = 9,045
- - - - - 59,674 (59,674) -
- - - - - - (297,845) (297,845)
13,615* 343,101* 872,035* 4,897* 100,756* 353,490*  7,216,449* 10,125,075

AR B ARG A MO R 2 67 A 9,955,845,000 8 70 (Z T — /<4 : 8,868,668,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—tF+_A=+—HBLFE
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B ek THER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RELBEOHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR %54 Al i 1,137,499 1,000,262
Adjustments for: N
Finance costs BsER 7 31,044 19,040
Share of profit of an associate JEL B N ] A 19 (4,550) (4,207)
Interest income LS UA 6 (75,341) (39,714)
Dividend income from listed investments EiiRE ZBREWA 6 (19,565) (21,630)
Dividend income from unlisted investments 3 Fi#% & < R EWA 6 (1,258) (1,468)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - HEREE
plant and equipment HEFEE B 6 2,698 2,174
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative HEMES T BFEE
financial instruments (zs) 6 (2,283) 89,692
Net loss on bullion loans designated as at BERBRATEBEIEREZ
fair value through profit or loss EeEBEEFEE 6 44,485 144,090
Net fair value gain on investment REWE A TEEFKE
properties o - 6 (20,910) (900)
Net fair value Ioss/(?ain) on bullion loans EERERATEBEERELZ
designated as at fair value through EeBESNATEEF
profit or loss BB/ (W) 6 30,412 (9,083)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investments at ~ ZAFEER] T REZRERN
fair value through profit or loss AEEEFER/ (W) 6 (3,175) 3,608
Net fair value loss on derivative financial TEeMIAZAFEE
instruments — transactions not qualifying FEE - THE
as hedges HHAFERLRXS 6 3,723 6,239
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEERE 2K
investments \ (113,948) -
Net gain on disposal of investments at fair ~ HEZAFEEITREZ
value through profit or loss BEF W= 6 (3,814) -
Gain on bargain purchase ZEBENR 6 - (913)
Depreciation e 6 192,009 181,987
Amortization of prepaid land lease BFHENIHAER
payments 6 273 276
Reversal of impairment of accounts JE W B ORI (B B )
receivable 6 = (1,010
Reversal of impairment of receivables HH R ECIEE 2 B
arising from securities and futures RRIUBERE - %E
broking, net 6 - (706)
Equity-settled share option expense ESEE 2 BIER 35 9,045 4,570
Write-down of inventories to net realizable #3477 5 & n &35 %{&
value 6 3,653 5,006
1,209,997 1,377,313
Increase in inventories FEZIEm (725,432) (55,918)
Increase in accounts receivable FEUGBR 2 7 38 1 (105,002) (31,897)
Increase in receivables arising from securities %’é%&ﬂﬁﬁ%«#ﬂﬁﬁi;ZTH&
and futures broking AR 23BN (158,574) (638,608)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other  FER A - 14 R H b fEY
receivables Bk 3 (66,019) (48,992)
Decrease in investments at fair value through A FEBEEREZREZ
profit or loss L 22,994 =
Increase in cash held on behalf of clients REPRHFERE ZEM (89,657) (35,322)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FERBER 2300,/ CR) (129,027) 156,216
Increase in payables arising from securities ~ FHEMHEELEL 2 EM
and futures broking BR2Em 154,331 6,572
Changes in derivative financial instruments ~ $T4 &g T B 8 &) 2,283 (89,692)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and HENRAREFIRE 2
accruals 2,/ Cd) 172,483 (116,570)
Cash generated from operations KEmERe 288,377 523,102
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2017

TEABRERER
HE—_T—+F+-_A=+—HILEFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (continued)

Cash generated from operations (continued)

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Mainland China and elsewhere taxes paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits paid for purchases of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Decrease in other assets

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Dividend received from an associate

Dividends received from listed investments

Dividends received from unlisted investments

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

New bullion loans

Repayment of bullion loans

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months when
acquired

REXBRERE ()

GEFERS (F)

E R &

EfFE
EAEBRIEH )
B[R EAR R i E I

REXBABZREREFR

REFEHZHRENE
BEVE  HENRERE
HEDE BRI RREHAE

REDDAAZREREFR
BMEZDRERE

#I%4R (T LR
BER
1% 5

REEDHAZ B RE IS
BeRERARE AL B
RENZRLRERRS
INEELRBYE  FE

RELZRERERAAE

RERERRELEFEIN

RERBTER
BFREISHEDR=EA Y
mE R B

2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
PiteE THERT THET
288,377 523,102
75,016 39,706
(6,263) (1,926)
(17,798) (71,058)
(234,282) (162,854)
105,050 326,970
(210,289) (196,605)
175 119
(2,678) (8,802)
114,010 =
27,202 7,738
37 = 2,877
485 558
19,565 21,630
1,258 1,468
(50,272) (171,017)
2,587,963 2,122,414
(2,671,255) (1,996,142)
1,482,079 1,105,790
(1,272,009) (1,261,927)
(24,356) (17,556)
(297,845) (392,614)
(195,423) (440,035)
(140,645) (284,082)
1,282,809 1,620,982
57,751 (54,091)
1,199,915 1,282,809
1,117,886 1,236,311
26 82,029 46,498
1,199,915 1,282,809
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.1

Corporate Information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

J manufacture and retail of jewellery
. wholesale of precious metals
. securities and futures broking

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 47.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, certain
buildings classified as property, plant and equipment, customer gold
deposits, bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain equity
investments which have been measured at fair value as further explained
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.1

2.2

Basis of Preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the equity holders of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognizes (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealized Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:
Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a significant financial
effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has been made in note 38
to the financial statements upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS
7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

P N

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Financial Instruments'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers'

Leases’

Insurance Contracts’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures’

Transfers of Investment Property'
Foreign Currency Transactlons and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28'

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKAS 12 and HKAS 23?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below. Of those standards, HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable for the Group’s financial year ending
31 December 2018 and are expected to have impact upon adoption.
Whilst management has performed a detailed assessment of the estimated
impacts of these standards, that assessment is based on the information
currently available to the Group, including expectations of the application
of transitional provision options and policy choices. The actual impacts
upon adoption could be different to those below, depending on additional
reasonable and supportable information being made available to the
Group at the time of applying the standards and the transitional provisions
and policy options finally adopted.

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification
of a share-based payment transaction with net settlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to meet an employees’ tax
obligation associated with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment transaction changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach used to account for
vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments
introduce an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order to
meet the employees’ tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction when certain conditions are met.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of
a cash-settled share-based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the
date of the modification. On adoption, entities are required to apply the
amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective application
is permitted if they elect to adopt for all three amendments and other
criteria are met. The Group will adopt the amendments from 1 January
2018. The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018.
The Group will not restate comparative information and will recognize any
transition adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment of
the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts relate to
the classification and measurement and the impairment requirements and
are summarized as follows:

Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have
a significant impact on the classification and measurement of its
financial assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair value all
financial assets currently held at fair value. Equity investments
currently held as available for sale will be measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the investments are
intended to be held for the foreseeable future and the Group
expects to apply the option to present fair value changes in
other comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other
comprehensive income for the equity investments cannot be
recycled to profit or loss when the investments are derecognized.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value through
profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on an expected
credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or a lifetime
basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach and record
lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on the present
values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade
receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply the general approach
and record twelve-month expected credit losses that are estimated
based on the possible default events on its other receivables within
the next twelve months. The Group has expected that the provision
for impairment will increase upon the initial adoption of the
standard.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognizing revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under
HKFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective
adoption is required on the initial application of the standard. In June
2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the
implementation issues on identifying performance obligations, application
guidance on principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help ensure a more
consistent application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognize the cumulative
effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1
January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional adjustment to be
made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies, as further
explained below, will have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group has performed a
detailed assessment on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The Group's principal activities consist of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, the wholesale of precious metals, and the securities and futures
broking. The Group does not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 will have
a significant impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial
position. However, the presentation and disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 15 are more detailed than those under the current HKAS 18. The
presentation requirements represent a significant change from current
practice and will significantly increase the volume of disclosures required
in the Group's financial statements. Many of the disclosure requirements
in HKFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed that the impact of
some of these disclosure requirements will be significant. In particular,
the Group expects that the notes to the financial statements will be
expanded because of the disclosure of significant judgements made on
determining the transaction prices of those contracts that include variable
consideration, how the transaction prices have been allocated to the
performance obligations, and the assumptions made to estimate the
stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation. In addition, as
required by HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue recognized
from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors. It will also disclose information about the relationship
between the disclosure of disaggregated revenue and revenue information
disclosed for each reportable segment.

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognize the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease liability
upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally
recognize the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and
finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply
the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption
and is considering whether it will choose to take advantage of the
practical expedients available and which transition approach and reliefs
will be adopted. As disclosed in note 39(b) to the financial statements,
at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$1,142,368,000. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included
therein may need to be recognized as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to be recognized,
including, but not limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen,
and new leases entered into before the date of adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property under construction or
development, into or out of investment property. The amendments state
that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management'’s intentions for the use of a
property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments
should be applied prospectively to the changes in use that occur on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendments. An entity should reassess the classification
of property held at the date that it first applies the amendments and, if
applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions that exist at that
date. Retrospective application is only permitted if it is possible without
the use of hindsight. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on how to
determine the date of the transaction when applying HKAS 21 to the
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration in a
foreign currency and recognizes a non-monetary asset or liability. The
interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on which an entity
initially recognizes the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-
monetary liability (such as deferred income) arising from the payment
or receipt of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognizing the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a full retrospective
basis or on a prospective basis, either from the beginning of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning
of the prior reporting period presented as comparative information in
the financial statements of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax
positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers
uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how
an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight or
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The interpretation is not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group’s share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's
share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investment in
the associate, except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture
or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method. In
all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combination and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognized for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognized in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold deposits,
bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

24

TESTBEBE @)
HXEHREE(R)

WiB 7y PR R S AR E N U B 5
BRAVEERR - DBREELAENK
AREELVEENE  RVEEOE
REBEERER - DB/ IAKEER
REHNE  HRGEERETAR -

BEMRERAGE - RATIEEA
B FERRREEER L SRELE
BAE R B R ETT 2 BAS 2R 2 (Ef
RV EEEM - BHAEARBREER
ERMEERBEZER - WRREREMD
BEZBMPRBBERBEEREZ AT
BE  EEHFEER  ZENERRER
REERENE -

B GAERE G I &
R-ZE—FRABTEGHMAG &5
EBEANE0RAEAHA  RREE
EZHEANKBFEBSARBENM
o ERMBBM B IMEERFE3RE
ZERERBEE A REGBNNE - kT
EREFBRBI2HABOEBHER
HEREER REELBURERRES
BafRPHER o

APREHE

EMTARETRNOHRE - AFEEA/T
G2REERRHERRETCAFR S
P HEEEMUBSERARMAXTZ
{B1% - AFEEFERRLEEELE R
REZRINZEEXABZIBMS -
FEEIETEZBER T)REZEER
BERBNZTHET - ARBXEATR
ZEBMEIRAENTHETLS - BE
FEBEZAFEERBATE2EER
BEFRETERMAZERGIE IR
/M2 AERERELEMNSTS -

FMBEEL AT EEEFHATSSE
EEREREEEZERRRERENE
BREELE TREAERS RRERE
ZA—HMH2REMEREL LB S
ZREN

AEBRAERBERATEER 2 HERKIM -
MEBRAERAGFEQNTEE RS
ERRRUBR  BERERERRERE
NER 8 -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
2017 F 3R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had
no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third

party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land and buildings

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2.5%

Plant and machinery 10% to 30%

Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures
and equipment

Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognized in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognized is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been revalued
by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the leasehold land and buildings revaluation
reserve realized in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to
retained profits as a movement in reserves.

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment properties,
the related revaluation surplus is retained in the leasehold land and
buildings revaluation reserve and remains there until the subsequent
disposal or retirement of the property, where by that time the revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in leasehold land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group
as an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortized
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade
on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”) and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures
Exchange”), have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognized in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated at
cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the
cost of the leasehold land and buildings as a finance lease in property,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognized
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes
do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which are
recognized in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortization is included in other income
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

()

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or
loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealized gains or
losses recognized as other comprehensive income in the investment
revaluation reserve until the available-for-sale financial assets
are derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, or until the available-
for-sale financial assets are determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
assets are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (i) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (ii) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating the fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on
that asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the assets using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortized cost and
the maturity amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the
asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

J the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognized in the statement profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on
an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its
fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets
are not reversed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an asset or
a group of assets is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously
recognized in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognized in the statement for profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the statement
of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment
are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or loans and borrowings, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
The net fair value gain or loss recognized in the statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss, including bullion loans, are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortization.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts
and foreign currency forward contracts, to hedge its bullion price risk and
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially
recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realizable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,
except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

J in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognized to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group's customer loyalty program, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied
and the award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the
award credits is measured by reference to the fair value of the
awards for which they could be redeemed. Such consideration is
not recognized as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction
- but is deferred and recognized as revenue when the award credits
are redeemed or expired upon the Group's obligations have been
fulfilled;

from the rendering of services, in the period in which such services
are provided;

commission on securities and futures broking, on the transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes are executed;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset;

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive payment
has been established; and

income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note 35 to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognized.
When awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilized by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave
earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs to the
central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognized as liabilities when they are approved by the
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association and bye-laws grant
the Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognized immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the cash flows of
subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

(a)  Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

(b)  Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Fair value of an unlisted equity investment

The Group’s unlisted equity investment has been valued using the
income capitalization method. This valuation requires the Group
to make estimates about capitalization rates, and hence they
are subject to uncertainty. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investment as at 31 December 2017 was HK$19,620,000 (2016:
HK$18,798,000). Further details are included in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Estimation of impairment of receivables

The Group determines the impairment of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking and other
receivables based on objective evidence of impairment and
historical loss experience of the respective individual balances of
the counterparties. If the financial condition of its debtors was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance and its future results would be affected.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 33 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment annually
and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and chooses a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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et A E X

IR ER B AR R B Bt = B Al 5+ NEARA
REMECTBEE - AFERERSIH

A

T—EMBFEEREERARREE

EBABBERBIT -

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

HLTROBEZ A FIEE
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RANEBEE AL R R EE
At BEEEEAETHEEME-
R-TE—+F+=-A=+—8H"
FETERHBREZAFEES
19,620,000/ 7L(= & — N F ¢
18,798,000/ 7T ) ° # — HrEBH
REI TSRS FE 20 -

FEWRARIEZ 187

AEBERBEAETBEERRR Y
FREFHRZBEBELRETRE
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REFRIRREREAS - AR
SERAETHREREE  MEKRK
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CRPERE
ABBEEE - ME%ABERHE
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EMBRELRN  EEEARE
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B o E—FHBRNMBREME
33°

HHBRERE(BEEI)
AEBEREEHRE HRFE2HF
WHEERDBFEEAMAETR -
BERERFH BV EESF AN
BRETREETRER - £
FHBEERBRRBRKEER]
RET BRI EEETTRER - WE
EdReELBMU RAEBROL
AREeR(ARELFEERLE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

&

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

("

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the statement of financial
position at their fair value. The fair value was based on valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favorable or
unfavorable changes to these assumptions would result in changes
in the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in market
conditions. The Group reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(a)

the manufacture and retail of jewellery segment produces jewellery
products for the Group's retail business and operates retail stores
mainly in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan;

the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers;

the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures; and

the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit
before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group's profit before tax except that certain dividend income, gain
on disposal of available-for-sale investments and share of profit of an
associate are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued) 4, RBEFBEHNE)
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail of precious  and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
RERE BEE BHEK Hit
REE # 2 HERE % &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THEx FTHERr TR THET
Year ended BE_Z—-tf§
31 December 2017 +=A=+—-8
LFEE
Segment revenue a6
Sales to external customers $5& FINKE P 14,516,326 2,032,818 34,353 49,884 16,633,381
Intersegment sales NEBHE - 705,541 - 3,084 708,625
14,516,326 2,738,359 34,353 52,968 17,342,006
Reconciliation: ZEAT -
Elimination of HEHNIEE
intersegment sales (708,625)
16,633,381
Segment results DEELE 901,990 14,732 48,013 34,364 999,099
Reconciliation: EEh -
Dividend income MR B U A 19,902
Gain on disposal of HEAHEEREZ
available-for-sale Wz
investments 113,948
Share of profit of an (=N
associate St 4,550
Profit before tax R AT A 1,137,499
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2017

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value loss on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on
derivative financial
instruments -
transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value gain on
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss/(gain) on disposal
of derivative financial
instruments

Net gain on disposal of
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net loss/(gain) on disposal
of items of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid
land lease payments

Write-down of inventories
to net realizable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure

BE-B—tf
t=A=+-H
LEE

Hitvn BEH

FIEMA

% BUA

BENEZ DTER
Fnes

EEARLTER
AEREZELE
BRENATEE
FEB

TEEMIAYZ
NFEEFEE-
TRAUERZ
25

BAYEEIEEE
ZRENRFERE
b

HERRRTFER
AERECETE
fEEFER

HEMTESRTA
R/ (Ra)

HERATFEETE
BEZRE
s

HEMF - WERR
BEEEER/
(Yezs)

e

BHRMLHAEE
FA

WEFRETEH
HE

HHER

BARMRAX

Manufacture
and retail

of jewellery
HERE
k2E
HK$'000
THERT

(15,782)

30,412

3,181

44,485

(2,930)

2,746
189,781

273
3,653

24,837
212,500

Wholesale
of precious
metals
BEtE
Filgy
HK$'000
THERT

(1)

542

647

RESBER (E)
Securities

and futures Other
broking businesses
BHEK Hith
HERR £
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT
(59,552) (6)
(921) -
- (20,910)
(3,175) -
(3,814) -
(48) -
1,849 379
6,207 -
3,253 -

Total
At
HK$'000
FH7

(75,341)
(921)

(20,910)

30,412

3,723

(3,175)

44,485

(2,283)

(3.814)

2,698

192,009

273

3,653

31,044
215,753
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2016

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:
Elimination of
intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income
Share of profit of an
associate

Profit before tax

4, REHBER(E)
Manufacture Wholesale Securities
and retail of precious and futures Other
of jewellery metals broking businesses Total
RERE ESB EHER Hit
RTE #E HEEY e/ Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAET FAT
BEE-E-—XE
+=A=+-H
LEE
a1l
HETFINRER 14,045,322 1,907,604 26,231 113,380 16,092,537
NEPIHE - 869,670 = 3,084 872,754
14,045,322 2,777,274 26,231 116,464 16,965,291
FBED -
HERDPHEE
(872,754)
16,092,537
TEEE 946,526 13,668 6,325 7,434 973,953
FBED -
B EMA 22,102
il d=NG|
il 4,207
BRI F 1,000,262
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2016

Other segment
information

Interest income

Dividend income

Net fair value gain on
investment properties

Net fair value gain on
bullion loans designated
as at fair value through
profit or loss

Net fair value loss on
derivative financial
instruments —
transactions not
qualifying as hedges

Net fair value loss on
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair
value through profit or
loss

Net loss on disposal of
derivative financial
instruments

Net loss/(gain) on disposal
of items of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid
land lease payments

Reversal of impairment of
accounts receivable

Reversal of impairment of
receivables arising from
securities and futures
broking, net

Write-down of inventories
to net realizable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure

Manufacture Wholesale
and retail of precious

of jewellery metals
HEE EOE

RTE # 3

HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT FTAT

BE-Z—RE

t=A=+-H

ILEE
Hth o HER
FISHA (11,436) (1)
% B = =
REWMEZ N TEE

FE - -
EERRATER

AERECELE

EENATEE

FlE (9,083) =
PTESRMIAY

ANTEEBEFEE-

THAEHRERZ

X5

6,201 38
BATEETERE

ZRENATEE

FEE - -
EERERATER

IEBECESE

BEFER

144,090 -
HETESRMTA
FEE
85,293 4,399
HEME - BRRE

HEEFER/

(Mz=) 2,176 =
neE 180,237 =
BT EE

A 276 -
JENBR TR B [

(1,010) -
BHERBELLESE

2 EWERTURE

#E - FE
MEFEZER

FE 5,006 =
HBER 17,037 =
EARMRZ 194,203 =

4., REFIWER(E)

Securities

and futures Other

broking businesses

BEHER Hith

HEE %%

HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT FAT

(28,265) (12)

(996) -

- (900)

3,608 -

@) =

1,588 162

(706) -

2,003 -

2,402 -

Total
ast

HK$:000
TAT

(39,714)
(996)

(900)

(9,083)

6,239

3,608

144,090

89,692

2,174

181,987

276

(1,010)

(706)

5,006
19,040
196,605
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REIBERE)
(a) Geographical information (a) HEEHR
Revenue from external customers HETIKE S Z W
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THAT
Hong Kong and Macau B8 KB 8,508,410 8,653,601
Mainland China R A fE 8,031,837 7,339,783
Taiwan =4 93,134 99,153
16,633,381 16,092,537

(b)

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the

customers.

Non-current assets

Hong Kong and Macau

Mainland China
Taiwan

BB RRF
B AR

=/5

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes available-for-sale investments and

deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers (b)

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior

years.

S R TS P A B

AN

4 o
FRBEE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT TET

727,071 751,249

586,209 503,455

26,145 25,498

1,339,425 1,280,202

LisERBEEBH R EEME
weEn TR HHERE

RIBERIBEE °

FHIEEFZEH

RAFER LFEREAEERA

BPZEXBIEAEE

DR 10% ©

BEEEY
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

Turnover

Turnover, which is also the Group’s revenue, represents the net invoiced
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and
value-added tax; commission on securities and futures broking and gross

rental income earned during the year.

Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover:

Sale of goods

Commission on securities and futures
broking

Gross rental income

Profit before Tax

EmiHE

ErRBELLAERA
BHESUWA

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold
Write-down of inventories to net
realizable value*
Depreciation
Amortization of prepaid land lease
payments
Auditor’s remuneration
Operating lease payments in respect of
leasehold land and buildings:
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents

Employee benefit expense**(excluding
Directors’ emoluments (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option expense

Pension scheme contributions
Less: Forfeited contributions

Net pension scheme contributions

HERA
RS R HE

e
BRI AE0R

e &
BERRETHREFY
RETRHNRK -
RIEHE R

EERMAX ** (TEEESEME

(PH7E8)) -
I&REE
R EE 2 BIERX

RAREF IR
B BRI

RAEFEIHFFE

5. &¥EH

EXRB - NAKEZ Y

1HEREMER

RE - RPFHEEERRELER R

B

FHA -

EXBERATER W

CRFRAER LA RAREHR

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
16,587,627 16,054,769
34,353 26,231
11,401 11,537
16,633,381 16,092,537

6. FRBUATER

AEBZBHEAEFIENRGIA) :

2017 2016

Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P& TERT TET
12,596,651 11,803,533

3,653 5,006

14 192,009 181,987
16 273 276
3,693 3,778

814,844 930,155

15,911 17,091

830,755 947,246

1,126,702 1,051,796

35 9,045 4,570
175,640 169,170
(55) (55)

175,585 169,115

1,311,332 1,225,481
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statement of profit or loss.

This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

*x The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$3,591,000 (2016:
HK$3,341,000) paid to a Director’s family members as employee emoluments.

statement of profit or loss.

These balances are included in “Other losses, net” on the face of the consolidated

These balances are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated

statement of profit or loss. The purpose of the above bullion transactions entered
into by the Group is to manage the Group's bullion price risk. Such loans and
contracts did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

* %

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BB R E M
Profit before Tax (continued) 6. BRBIADEA (E)
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(i3 THER FAET
Reversal of impairment of accounts JRE W B SRR (B 5 (Bl
receivable 22 - (1,010)
Reversal of impairment of receivables FH LB EE 2 R
arising from securities and futures HERR - FE
broking, net 23 — (706)
Direct operating expenses (including S 2 RENFEELER
repairs and maintenance) arising on T (BEABERRE)
rental-earning investment properties 1,194 673
Net fair value gain on investment BEME L AT EERRE"
properties’ 15 (20,910) (900)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on bullion loans  #EE AR AFEEIEHEBEZES
designated as at fair value through BEENATFEEFESE/
profit or loss" (Mezs) " 30,412 (9,083)
Net fair value loss on derivative financial ~ $T4 &8 T A2 AFEEFERE -
instruments — transactions not TEUREREZR "
qualifying as hedges® 3,723 6,239
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investments — ZAVEEF TREBE L HENDTF
at fair value through profit or loss” BEFER,/(W5)" (3,175) 3,608
Net loss on bullion loans designated as at 5§ BIZAFEEICHEZES
fair value through profit or loss”" BiEEFEE" 44,485 144,090
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative HEMTAES BT EFRERE (Ues)"
financial instruments” (2,283) 89,692
Net gain on disposal of investments at fair HEZRAFEEIERBZRE
value through profit or loss* Fleas (3.814) =
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEWH - R K REER FEE
plant and equipment 2,698 2,174
Gain on bargain purchase* HEBEUE 37 - (913)
Interest income FSWA (75,341) (39,714)
Dividend income from listed investments & & 72 IEWKA (19,565) (21,630)
Dividend income from unlisted FLEMHREZREKA
investments (1,258) (1,468)
Foreign exchange differences, net fERZER FE (48,996) 11,397

WESBEEGARER EMHEKRK]

==Y

EERIRALBEINF—RESZRIK
K EfEAREEMSE 2 £ 53,591,000/ T
(ZZ—7"4F : 3,341,00087T) °

WEEHBEEERARaR LIAME

B BElT -

WEEREeEEARER EIHEKA]
Feo AKERIV LR ESERSEEERE
AEBECBERRR - ZEEERA
AT A B TR R 1T o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

7.  Finance Costs 7. BIKER
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and RITER  BIR
other loans HihERZFE 31,044 19,040
8.  Directors’ Emoluments 8. ESMe
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, B ETRA - BB R BMEG 5 383(1)
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance @ b OROBARAAHEES
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of M ER)BROIE2E - REZ 2 EZTH
Directors) Regulation, are as follows: SHWENT :
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THET
Fees e 3,159 3,512
Other emoluments: Hibf g :
Salaries and allowances He KA 5,917 6,007
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable BN RERRIEEL 824 695
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHER 95 93
6,836 6,795
9,995 10,307

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED @ ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

8. Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during

the year is as follows:

2017

Executive Directors:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling"
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*
Mr. LEE Ka Lun*
Dr. LO King Man*
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

2016

Executive Directors:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHOW Kwen LingA
Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun*
Mr. LEE Ka Lun*
Dr. LO King Man*
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung*

A Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling passed away on 27 May 2017

—B-tF

HTES !
XA A
JERAN B
BARKEE

FHUTES:
BES k.
TRBRE
EHMEE
BRImE) 8 &
FRBLL
ESXEL
BB L

S

HITES:
KR f i
R B A
[yl

FUTES:
BERRE
AEEEL"
TREB%RE
M AE
BRREE A *
FREEE
ESXEL*
BBk

Dr. CHOW Kwen Lim passed away on 17 September 2016

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

8.

ESHE ()

FREHNRENTEEIMEOWIT

Discretionary

bonuses Pension

Salaries and paid and scheme
Fees allowances payable  contributions Total
BHREA DB )
ik FeRER BEREA at Bl Bt
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TR TER TR TR
400 3,035 433 - 3,868
330 291 24 15 660
270 2,448 367 80 3,165
1,000 5,774 824 95 7,693
109 143 - - 252
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
400 - - - 400
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
2,159 143 = = 2,302
3,159 5,917 824 95 9,995
400 2,974 360 - 3,734
330 291 25 15 661
270 2,400 310 78 3,058
1,000 5,665 695 93 7,453
270 342 - - 612
192 z = = 192
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
400 - - - 400
330 - - - 330
330 - - - 330
2,512 342 - - 2,854
3,512 6,007 695 93 10,307

BAESRER_T—tFA A=+ HE

BAEREBLINR=_Z—

BUFATES

NEAATLREHE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year (2016: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year (2016: Nil).
Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are
as follows:

8. EEMe(&)
FRALTEEMHMERNTEUFNTES

(ZF—7RF %)

FREZWEFTVEMREIREREL
AMEHLH(ZE—RF : ) -

RARRSRERBAEINZMEMT

Number of individuals

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

1,000,001 7L % 1,500,000 % 7T -

1,500,001 7L & 2,000,000 % 7T
2,000,001 /87T 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 /& 7L £ 3,000,000 8 7T
3,000,001 7T 3,500,000 % 7T
3,500,001 " 7T % 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 /& 7% 4,500,000 /8 7T

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2016: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2016: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

e KRR

BN RENBBTEL
RemEE 2 BB
RN IR

AB

2017 2016
1
1 1
= 1
= 1
1 _

1
1 _
4 5

10. hEEREHHES

FRAAKELZERFHEREEME
(Z2-A"F MB)EF HFdMe
BHEN LRME8 . REEREB=F
(ZF—R"F: ZR)RRFHFESRR

ZAHMEERAT -

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$’'000

TET TAT

7,580 7,430

3,005 960

605 270

379 371

11,569 9,031
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

10.

1.

Five Highest Paid Employees (continued)

10.

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments

fell within the following bands is as follows:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

Income Tax

2,000,001 /87 2,500,000 78 7T
2,500,001 7T Z 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 % 7T % 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 7T % 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 /& 7T % 4,500,000 8 7T

11.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate
Income Tax (the “CIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the CIT
Law, the tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2016: 25%).
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Current - Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current — Mainland China and elsewhere
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Deferred (note 33)

Total tax charge for the year

KE - BB
FRFIA
BAEFEREERE

AE - REIARE R AR
FRNFIE
BEFERARE

EE(FIFE33)

FABIREE

LEREHHES (H)

WENTFUTER 2 REHFMNEEEES
ZAEIT

Number of individuals

AB

2017 2016
- 1
- 1
1 =
1
1 =
3 3

Frig®
EENCHDEBEEFAREBEEZ A
JERTEMIATEE16.5% (2T — /N F -
16.5%) B - REFEARENBECE
FTERUA(TEMBIE]D) ROEMER
FERAA - FEAENBARZHES
25% (ZZF—7X4F : 25%) o H b = fE
AR RBDRAEBR S EERE
EERE 7 BANETE -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
37,401 18,773
(699) (2,408)
215,847 217,526
(340) (829)
8,872 25,024
261,081 258,086
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

1.

Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of
16.5% (2016: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous
periods

Profit attributable to an associate

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10%
(2016: 5% or 10%) on the distributable profits
of the Group's subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China

Tax losses utilized from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognized

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

The Group’s share of tax charge attributable to the associate amounting
“Share of profit of an
associate” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

to HK$94,000 (2016: HK$96,000) is included in

11. FBHGE)

TREAREIRZEME DA ZMKL
FERZERR OAEREFELBEAR
BRBATE N 2 IR - A RIRB B R KA E

ZIRTERITHER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
B 750 BT 1,137,499 1,000,262
BEBEEHE16.5%

(ZZ "5 16.5%):TERHE 187,687 165,043
EAREEADH

EMEA HEER 59,425 71,871
BT 2 BiEE

ANER R (1,039) (3,237)
FEREE AR m (751) (694)
T A AR N (15,013) (27,203)
A NFL 2 fdars 5,519 18,399
BASENPEARLTE

B2 BB A R Z Al ok

HHM5% 3K 10% (ZFB—7"F :

5% 3 10% )5 E TR 2 & 24,376 28,810
(E BT ERE 2 FIEE R (2,083) (100)
M AR RER Z (AT BB E B 2,960 5,197
BAKERERRAE KA 261,081 258,086

AN B FE B £ A R FHE A A 94,0008 T
(ZZB—AF  96000%7%) ERAHE
meEnk E[EEEER

A | o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

12.

13.

Dividends

Dividends recognized as distribution during
the year:

Final dividend for 2016: HK35.0 cents
(2015: HK36.0 cents) per ordinary share

“ERERPRE
FEBA35.0 L

REABRRBEZRE

(ZZT—FR%F :36.0/81l)

Special final dividend for 2016: Nil

(2015: HK14.0 cents) per ordinary share BEAERZTE

“TNFRRIRER A

=

(ZZ—HRF : 14.0%1)

—T—tFPHRE
BERER 9.0

Interim dividend for 2017: HK9.0 cents
(2016: HK8.0 cents) per ordinary share

(ZZ—RE : 8.0/81)

Dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period:

Final dividend for 2017: HK42.0 cents
(2016: HK35.0 cents) per ordinary share

T HFERBARE
BERR42.081

RBERRREREZRE

(ZZ—R"EF : 35.0%81l)

The proposed final dividend for 2017 was recommended after the end of
the reporting period and has not been recognized as a liability at the end
of the reporting period, and it is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 676,920,000 (2016:
676,920,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is based on the profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all share
options into ordinary shares.

No adjustment had been made to the basic earnings per share amounts
presented for the year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options outstanding had no dilutive effect on
the basic earnings per share amount presented.

12.

13.

1R B
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET
236,922 243,691
= 94,769
60,923 54,154
297,845 392,614
284,505 236,922

T FRIRE CRPRENREHR
REBRE TARBEHRAERRA
& REFARERRNEFET BN
BERE LHUE - TAEE -

ARRBEEREABGERET

EREABFESBDHIRFRAD A ER
BEAEABRGESEMREFEARND HTMET
15 B 17 676,920,000 )& (= & — /X F -
676,920,000 %) @R H -

BE_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFESE
BE#EERNSEDEFANLARARERA
ABERNFE - 5t B R AT BB
BIPERNAFNERTERRHEE &
AEEREARBNERAERR SRR
EREBEN R ARTEMBERTNE
BB o

A R T B AR AT 2 5 SR E AR
BRI EHIEYE WAEHREE
“E-NFE+-A=+—HIFERZ27
MEREARTSBIELFHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

3"

Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company 1

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, used in the basic and diluted
earnings per share calculation

Shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year used in the basic earnings
per share calculation

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
effect of share options dilution

87
ARmEEREARERZN -
ARG ESRENREER

42
ARt EBREAREN 2R
BRITEBENEF AR

B BT RN
2Bt

3. FLAERRREAERGSRER(H)

BREAREERN TR THE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
Fl
876,418 742,176

Number of shares

BRHHA
2017 2016

676,920,000 676,920,000

1,019,857 =

677,939,857 676,920,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

14.

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 December
2017

At 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2017,
net of accumulated
depreciation

Surplus on revaluation

Additions

Transfer to investment
properties

Disposals

Depreciation provided
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017,
net of accumulated
depreciation

At 31 December 2017:

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

R-B-t#%
+=A=t+-H

RZZE—RF
t-ZA=+-H
E-E—+F
—A—R:

AR

2itE

REFHE

RZE—+F
_H_H ’
HBEHE

EHR%

AE

BERENE

&
ERFTERR

AR

R-T—+F
+-A=+—-A8"
HBR2FHTE

RZE—+F
+-A=t-8:

KA (A

ZEE

REFE

14. ¥ BBERZE

Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
Freehold land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
land buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HEWE
KA HELH BE  #5BH
£ELHh RETF k% RERZE "B &it
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THER THER FHET TR THER THER
18,388 513,121 121,407 966,270 12,834 1,632,020
- (184,420) (70,293) (664,361) (8,755) (927,829)
18,388 328,701 51,114 301,909 4,079 704,191
18,388 328,701 51,114 301,909 4,079 704,191
- 3,652 - - - 3,652
- - 21,522 193,723 508 215,753
15 = (4,000) - = = (4,000)
- - (120) (2,749) (4) (2,873)
- (21,768) (15,443) (153,207) (1,591) (192,009)
1,886 12,395 3,100 20,050 176 37,607
20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 762,321
20,274 528,830 144,711 1,106,367 12,664 1,812,846
- (209,850) (84,538) (746,641) (9,496)  (1,050,525)
20,274 318,980 60,173 359,726 3,168 762,321
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B BEmERE
14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14. Y% BBERREGE)
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold furniture,
Freehold land and Plantand fixtures and Motor
land buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
MEME
KA MELH s 2B R
EELH LEF S EERGE i At
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt TET TEL TAL TET TET TET
As at 31 December R-B-KF
2016 +=B=t+-H
At 1 January 2016: RZE—RE
—-A-B:
Cost or valuation A AE 18,164 527,843 100,814 899,013 10,906 1,556,740
Accumulated depreciation Z3H#E - (165,567) (58,789) (603,556) (8,020) (835,932)
Net carrying amount FEFE 18,164 362,276 42,025 295,457 2,886 720,808
At 1 January 2016, RIZ—RE
net of accumulated —A—H"
depreciation MBZRE 18,164 362,276 42,025 295,457 2,886 720,808
Additions RE = = 26,468 167,233 2,904 196,605
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—KHBLAR 37 - - 64 - 5 69
Disposals HE - - (129) (2,164) = (2,293)
Depreciation provided ~ FERITERME
during the year = (21,951) (15,101) (143,392) (1,543) (181,987)
Exchange realignment (B :B% 224 (11,624) (2,213) (15,225) (173) (29,011)
At 31 December 2016, RZZE—R%E
net of accumulated +-A=1+-1"
depreciation Nk 2:teE 18,388 328,701 51,114 301,909 4,079 704,191
At 31 December 2016:  R-Z—RE
+-RA=t+-0:
Cost or valuation A E 18,388 513,121 121,407 966,270 12,834 1,632,020
Accumulated depreciation Z3#%E - (184,420) (70,293) (664,361) (8,755) (927,829)
Net carrying amount REEE 18,388 328,701 51,114 301,909 4,079 704,191

Certain of the Group's leasehold land and buildings were revalued on
31 December 1993 by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally
qualified valuers. The leasehold land and buildings were revalued on an
open market, existing use basis. Since 1995, no further revaluations of the
Group's leasehold land and buildings have been carried out, as the Group
has relied upon the exemption, provided under the transitional provisions
of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out future revaluations of its
property, plant and equipment which were stated at valuation at that

time.

AEEETHELHRMETR-AN=F
T A=+ REBYREAERMAER
BRAABTERS  ZFHELHRET
REREREE AT EEEER - K&
EE-NWNAFRATEGTEAE 16
RBEGRTE T2 H% - BAYHNER
HEFIRZME  BENMREBETRIE
fh BMYBEAEEETHRETHEE

fib o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

14.

15.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amount would have been
approximately HK$16,530,000 (2016: HK$18,081,000).

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the Group's leasehold land and
buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$39,000,000 were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (notes 31 and 32). The pledge was released during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Investment Properties

Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—BZEKHEE

Transfer from leasehold land and HERELHRET
buildings

Net gain from a fair value adjustment NP BEARZFRE

Exchange realignment PE A

Rt A=t+—RZKmEE

Carrying amount at 31 December

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$322,013,000 on 31 December 2017 based on valuations performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 39(a) to the financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$178,000,000 were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (notes 31 and 32). The
pledge was released during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
pages 157 to 160.

14.

15.

ME - #ERRRE(R)

W5 EMRE - i RIETIAE LR R
SHTESIE - HBRE{EX)/4 16,530,00058 T
(ZZ—7 % : 18,081,00087T) °

RZBE—RE+-RA=+—0 &~£E&
A% F 48 Bk T % {8 4939,000,000 7 7T
ZHELH RIEFERE - BASEME
—RBTEEEER(IEIIR32) - %
BHEREBE_Z—+H+-A=1+—H
I FERER o

REME
2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wiyt TER THET
295,573 296,067
14 4,000 =
6 20,910 900
1,530 (1,394)
322,013 295,573

EEECRESBEWEIME  HERE
BETKAVEREWNEEE NGB
BEZHERREAEINGEZYE -
R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—H A&H
ZHEEMEREHBYEESERGEE
MBERTAERARETZHEEEMHA
322,013,000 7T °

ZERBMENCLEROBTE=F - &
—FHBEERMBRENE39@ A

R-ZBE—XE+-_F=+—H  KX&HF
LABR T 448 178,000,000 8 T 2 IR E W%
IR AREEHME—RRITEEE
EROTE3IRI2) - ZBBEEREE
—E—+E+R=t+—HILEEER
(5/% o

ARARERENR ZE—SHBHNE
1572160 H ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2016
Net gain from a fair value adjustment

recognized in profit or loss
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2016
and 1 January 2017

Transfer from leasehold land and
buildings

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognized in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2017

T-RE—-HA—-BZEKHEE

n=

RESETERNATER
AR F W=

b 5 S

R=E—X"F+=-A=+—H
hZF—+F—H—H
ZHRMEE

HEEHET I NIET

RBREDHERN A FEE
REZF
B 5 G

R=E—+F+=-A=+—H
ZERMEE

15. REWE(E)
DATEESER
PIERENFEADBRATEEZRZ R
= HBERLFER-_FT-RFTA
=t—BIEFEARAI—ERR = 2 B
BERATEAESESEY  TESAREHR
A= o REEEEEME 2 &mAE&E
RGEREBERETED R o
SBRAANTBESRZBRI=A2 A FE
B EE -
Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
REBRE REBEN
A /S BFEZU* &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TERT TExT
274,470 21,597 296,067
900 - 900
— (1,394) (1,394)
275,370 20,203 295,573
4,000 - 4,000
20,910 - 20,910
- 1,530 1,530
300,280 21,733 322,013
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

15.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
to the valuation of investment properties:

15. REWEE)

As at 31 December 2017
R-Z—tF+=-A=+—AH

Properties held in Hong Kong
REBRALINE

Properties held outside Hong Kong
REBRIMNGE 2%

As at 31 December 2016
R-E-X"E+ZA=+—H

Properties held in Hong Kong
REBRALYE

Properties held outside Hong Kong
REBRIMNGE ZMF

Valuation techniques

B

Market comparison method

[iE124.1973

Market comparison method

5B

Market comparison method
ML BUE

Market comparison method
R AV

ATEESR(E)
AT REEYE L ERERGERNRE
EHBIHE
Significant
unobservable Range
inputs (weighted average)
EREUBRYE EE (hHEF)
HK$
BT

Price per square foot

7,000 to = 54,000

BRHIRER (10,000)
Price per square foot 200

FYHRE®

Price per square foot
SFHREE

Price per square foot
BEHRER

7,000 to & 51,000
(10,000)

200

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot would result
in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment
properties.

The investment properties are valued by the market comparison method
having regard to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant
market. The valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion
and other factors collectively.

BIHREBRAE LA/ THRESBIRE
M NFHEEREEM R o

REDENSEZE@N S L2 AL BIHE
RH% - TS EAEITHE - HEE
Rt RMECEE - BREWE - K/ 8
CEIFERREMRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

16. Prepaid Land Lease Payments

Carrying amount at 1 January
Amortization (note 6)
Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

Current portion included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Non-current portion

17. Intangible Assets

Trading rights

Cost at 1 January and 31 December,
net of accumulated amortization

At 31 December:
Cost (gross carrying amount)
Accumulated amortization

Net carrying amount

R—RA—BZHREE

i (o)

B 5 R

R+ A=+—RZKREE

AABMNRE - 2k
HioERERR 2R # D

FREELD

R

16. FEMLHAEFE

R—H—BR+ZA=+t—RB2

AR - Rk Rt #E

R+-—A=+—8:
A (BREAE)
Rt

%A

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights are considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net cash
flows of the Group indefinitely, which are not amortized.

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
11,620 12,704
(273) (276)
869 (808)
12,216 11,620
(284) (264)
11,932 11,356
17. EFEE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAT
271 271
524 524
(253) (253)
271 271

RMBB G EREBRR AR S
REARASEERMGTRRASREF
B BRRAREERE M EEH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

18. Other Assets 18. HMEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FAET
Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese SREEFHH([SREEH%H])
Gold and Silver Exchange Society (“CGSE") SEMAN 1,500 1,500
Statutory deposits in respect of securities and EBREFLRER L AT RS
futures broking 3,118 3,012
Rental deposits* HEZS 199,801 227,109
Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, BE®E « #ELREEE 2
plant and equipment [EANEESA 6,016 8,802
210,435 240,423
* The rental deposits are related to office properties and retail shops leased by the * WRAER Y HASRTEERL S
Group (note 39(b)) and the majority of the terms of the lease arrangements are 390b)) 2 HERELRS  ABHHELED
over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount of approximately iR — 4 - E 4 485,000,000 7T
HK$85 million (2016: approximately HK$96 million) relating to operating leases (ZF—% : #996,000,0005870) B—4&
expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion that such deposits are MBI RS - EER A IWEBEA
of a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases are expected to be MIEHIR R AT ERE B B . R
renewed upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the Directors consider it SEBESNE - Fit B2 AB I
appropriate to classify such deposits as non-current assets. iR e AN RIEREEE o
19. Investment in an Associate 19. REZATZRE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Share of net assets EIEFEE 32,453 28,388

Particulars of the associate are as follows: R NEFEWT
Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable

Place of

Particulars of incorporation

Name issued shares held and business to the Group Principal activity
TR i BIR KEB G

8 RAFE = $:uk EEEA TEXH

Foo Sang Enterprises Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 36.63 Property

Limited investment

EHEEXARAA EimAR B MEHRE

Ll g R R RARRRERE - AN
BREAERDEEE R RE -

The above associate is indirectly held by the Company and has been
accounted for using the equity method in these financial statements.

@
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

19.

20.

Investment in an Associate (continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group's
associate:

JE {8 & 1 ) F et A

Share of the associate’s profit for the year
Share of the associate’s total comprehensive

income
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AEEREERR 2R
investment in the associate REAE

Available-for-sale Investments

LARHRE - BHE

Listed equity investments, at market value*
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value FETRMHIRE -
Unlisted equity investments, at cost

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group's available-for-
sale investments recognized in other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$224,830,000 (2016: gross loss of HK$61,779,000), of which
HK$113,948,000 (2016: Nil) was reclassified from other comprehensive
income to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year.

The above investments consist of equity securities which have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2017, certain unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$260,000 (2016: HK$260,000) were
stated at cost because there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements so that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of
them in the near future.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's listed equity investments with a
carrying value of HK$719,400,000 (2016: HK$659,520,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investments at the date of
approval of these financial statements was HK$938,178,000.

* On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange and
the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses (Merger)
Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (“HKEC"), six exchange trading rights in the Stock Exchange and
one exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange as a consideration for the
cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock Exchange and 1 share held in the
Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 3,561,800 (2016:
4,061,800) shares of HKEC, five (2016: five) exchange trading rights in the Stock
Exchange and one (2016: one) exchange trading right in the Futures Exchange.

JEIEHE AR 2 E AR
Bz

*

wATEE
FEMBHERE - BRA

REBE QR 2 RE ()
TREFIREEBERRZMBEER

2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TET THET
4,550 4,207
4,550 4,207
32,453 28,388
AHHERE
2017 2016
HK$’'000 HK$°000
TET TET
854,120 744,122
19,620 18,798
260 260
19,880 19,058
874,000 763,180
TR RAMZARSEERZAEE

A B % & 8 U5 A 224,830,000/ 7T
—E—XF : #E51861,779,000/87C) -
HUZ5 113,948,000 L(ZE—~F : T
ﬁﬁ@%@%éé%%ﬁ§$¢ﬁﬁé
18R

R ERRYEETEIHAXERDR
2N &S o

R=F—+F+=A=+—H - mRARA
ZAFEEFENLERERSZ  EER
/ﬂsgtﬂ;rﬁriﬁ NTEE aﬁzﬁEW@@
260,0007% 7 (=F — 75 4 : 260,000 7T.)
ZETIEEMBRRE TR AR o &
EEESTNARRRHEZZRE -

R-T—+F+-F=+—8 KEE
imhf&ﬁ%@@ﬂ9mww%ﬁ
—Z — N 1 659,520,000 7T ) fE K
o BAEERE—RBITEEEER
(BftzE31) ©

RABBHREEMZER  AEBZ LW
AR & T {E 5 938,178,000 B T °

* RZZTZETFE=AB  BEXZFARE
HAT(A B GBI 2R A prar 8l - A%E
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BER—(ASHIMRHE  URRRERR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

21.

22,

Inventories

Goods held for sale

Accounts Receivable

Trade and credit card receivables
Impairment

Accounts receivable

FEWE 5 R =R RIR
mIE

FEMARR

The Group's trading terms with its retail customers are mainly on cash
and credit card settlement while trading terms with corporate clients and
wholesale customers are on credit with credit period generally up to 60

days. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1{E8A A

1 to 2 months 12218A
2 to 3 months 2Z=31EA
Over 3 months BiBE3EA

21. BE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
7,489,574 6,557,877

22, FEUWERR
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
920,088 792,781
= (1,100)
920,088 791,681

AEEARTERFPIIVNRFIERETE

RREREAREE

BEPAILMRZ SN

MEPERP Rt
REE-RRZ

AEATR - BHEHmREEEARE
HER - RRESFEFRLE -

RIREHR - EURFIRIEER B H R

REERZRROMAT :

N

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
776,534 682,677
113,824 87,509
18,680 14,237
11,050 7,258
920,088 791,681
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

22.

Accounts Receivable (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts receivable due
from customers arising from jewellery operations are as follows:

At 1 January Kn—HA—H

Impairment losses reversed (note 6) EREREEE(MT6)
Amount written off as uncollectable MR AR e 25
Exchange realignment BE 5, 92

At 31 December mt+-A=t+—~

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts receivable
as at 31 December 2016 was a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of HK$1,100,000 with a carrying amount before provision of
HK$1,100,000.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable not impaired at the end of
the reporting period, based on the due date, is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired I fE 8 B SR E
Less than 1 month past due BELR1EA
1 to 3 months past due w1 =3EA

Over 3 months past due & A 3 E A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers/debtors for whom there was no recent
history of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers/debtors that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on experience, the Directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

22. FEUWERR(E)
KEEBEE CBREPRIZBERE

BEHWT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

Tigx TAT

1,100 2,207

- (1,010)

(1,137) -

37 (97)

- 1,100

RITE—A"F+-_A=1+—8  L#iEk
RSB ERET BEER B RERKIER
B H51,100,00058 7T - HEERIREE
1,100,000 7T °

RBEHR - BAREZ RUCRFREE

HMAZEEDHIT -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR THET

763,256 669,582

115,143 95,377

34,108 25,561

7,581 1,161

920,088 791,681

ABH R EREZ ERRFEAEL B K
ERERSEDBER EEAEH - BA
HiEERE KRR ES BN A S E %
BRIFEELSBIRR BHARH -
REESH  AAEERSANEEERY
EEABE - ABRRDARHAST2ENR
@ - AR LT AR LRERE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

23. Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Receivables arising from securities and futures TEHBEBPES KB K
broking conducted in the ordinary course of FEUER K
business:
Cash clients ReEP
Clearing houses, brokers and dealers ,D#Pﬁ RIERZ S
Clients for subscription of initial public REFTRAARBRER
offering (“IPO") shares
Loans to margin clients HREFER
Receivables arising from securities and futures BERBERLEEL
broking JEUTBR 5K

The receivables are settled two days after the trade date or at specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers. Futures deals are
normally settled on a cash basis. Receivables from margin and cash clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities and futures broking are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.

An ageing analysis of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking at the end of the reporting period, based on the due date and net
of provisions, is as follows:

Not yet due R Hf

Within 1 month past due BEHIEARN

1 to 2 months past due a1 E2MEA

2 to 3 months past due B2 =3M@A

Over 3 months past due & A 3 E A

Loans to margin clients’ FREFER

Clients for subscription of IPO shares* RBERLRBRER

The loans to margin clients are secured by the underlying pledged securities,
repayable on demand and bear interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis is not relevant
in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing. As at
31 December 2017, the total market value of securities pledged as collateral
in respect of the loans to margin clients was HK$1,417,070,000 (2016:
HK$1,492,212,000).

& As at 31 December 2017, receivables from clients for subscription of IPO shares
of HK$10,221,000 (2016: Nil) were due when the corresponding allotment results
of the related IPO shares had been publicly announced and bore interest at
commercial rates.

EENHERLELE 2 BLURR

REEZ

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
76,890 71,439
47,934 10,059
10,221 -
849,861 744,834
984,906 826,332

BUREFRELXSAHEMASRELESE

BT SRR %ﬁ%mm%ﬂﬁﬁtﬁ

ﬁ HERG—RUBREEE - REESH
Efziﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁmﬁw
mM%éH%é&EX@a

i iﬁiﬁﬁﬂi BRMEELEL R
SRR A R AR BB R 2 R DT
ZZDT :

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
72,260 17,411
42,787 36,637
1,710 22,430
1,625 366
6,442 4,654
124,824 81,498
849,861 744,834
10,221 =
984,906 826,332

# FREFPEFAERE EMEHEER
ARERREEREEEGRRGLS - &
% RAERBEFTRE E%ﬁ%l&%ﬁﬁ@%
SR - WEREBRRDN - K
—F— ti-&- A=+—H ' B@FE
REFERNEHBBERARZAETE
7%14170700001% T(ZF — XN &
1,492,212,0008 )

& R-Z—+E+_A=1+—0 " %RABEE
RAFBROEREF£%/10,221,000
BIL(ZT—RE T) DREEERA
BBz AR EERAMRES - WiZ
PSEIRIGETR ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

23.

24,

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record with
the Group. Based on experience, the Directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The movements in provision for impairment of receivables arising from
securities and futures broking are as follows:

At 1 January R—HA—H

Impairment losses reversed (note 6) EREREEE(E6)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H
Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Prepayments FERTRIE

Deposits Be

Other receivables Hofth FE YRR X

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

23.

24,

BERAERLEE 2 BURR (8)

AEALEREREEREARY B
ARERLEZIBEF AR - BAREE
BB U ES 2N A EEEE RIF
ERELBRCBUYEPAR - RELR K
RAEERRENERERYEEANE
2 BESKDARE AT 2HKE - HE
R RS ERELRERE -

B R R A R R
BEBIT :

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT THET

- 706

- (706)
BNNE - RERH M EKRK

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$°000

TR TET

238,794 182,698

39,353 38,319

29,074 3,233

307,221 224,250

LiiEEMERNREHE ALl
BB CMBEERIRYBETENLCER
FEMR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

25. Investments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Listed equity investments, at market value

The above equity investments were held for trading.

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances Be RRITER
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when acquired

EEREREH

Cash and cash equivalents HekZERBS

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to RMB677,350,000 (approximately
HK$813,294,000) (2016: RMB750,090,000 (approximately
HK$837,250,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits are made for periods of 7 days to 3
months, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients" monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognized the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

Il E - mHE

FREIHELR=EAZ

BEAVPEEIEREZRE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT THET
17,073 33,078
LRBEHEEDFERERE
RERERRE REFRERE
RERERRE AT -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
1,117,886 1,236,311
82,029 46,498
1,199,915 1,282,809

RBERR AEBERBRARELE
ZHEBARUAREABEMNZRE SR
R 17 17 & A677,350,000 7T A R B(#4
813,294,000/ L )(=Z & — N &
750,090,000 7t A R #(4837,250,000
BIL)) c ARETEERABRAEREME
B SRT - AR AR B K RE 2 INE B il
R4E EENMNETERTE  NEEE
R RERBEETIINEEB ZRITERAR
BERMABHMER -

ROTREREET RROIERNERF A
LKERDFIE - RHERER 2 ERERT
AE3EATSE » LIRERZEBERF
LERIA B o RITEREREBRFMIT
YW BB 482 RT -

AEERFRIRITRARBIULETRP - A
FREFIHEEPNABEBEL K
B ARBEERUEEPRAD BRNER
BBEMRRARARRBEER T Z[REP
RAERE | YRBEAKEA LRFPHA
ZIEMBRIMA B EMERRENT
HAETPER - AREAEAEFHIEA
EEEB AT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

27.

28.

Accounts Payable
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
Within 1 month 118 B A
1 to 2 months 122M8A
Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking
Payables arising from securities and futures EREEBPESRBEL
broking conducted in the ordinary course of A 2 EITER
business:
Cash clients’ BeRp'
Margin clients* HFEREP*

ERRPERLEE L
FERHBRAK

Payables arising from securities and futures
broking

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an

ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.
# Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$445,272,000 (2016: HK$310,478,000) representing those clients’ undrawn
monies/excess deposits placed with the Group. As at 31 December 2017, the
cash client accounts payable included an amount of HK$2,927,000 (2016:
HK$7,040,000) in respect of securities transactions undertaken for the accounts of
certain Directors. The cash client accounts payable are repayable on demand and
bear interest at commercial rates.

* The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

27.

28.

c

PEfFBR TR
RIBERER - BNEFBERZAHZER
RO
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
121,520 248,762
551 14,625
122,071 263,387
BAERHEEEEE 2 ENERR
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTART FET
502,668 359,843
71,380 59,874
574,048 419,717

EERAENLLHHESER AT ES

IR - PWERERE DT

# BREEAFEBTENEFREEEEL
ERE S &P IRAAI 445,272,000 7% T
(ZZF—7"F :310,478,000/8T) A% E
BEEBRASEZ RRIGIE /BN
Be -R=_F—tF+=-A=+—8 ' E
NEEEFERREAETESE,#T
EBHRHZFHIE2,927,000 8T (=ZF—X
4 :7,040,000/7T) - BAREBTFER
BREREHEE RIREEERFTR ©

* BN TR E P RAANEREHEE RIS

REFGER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

29.

30.

Other Payables and Accruals

Accruals fEFHIER
Other payables H At FETRR K
Customer gold deposits XPE®

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this
arrangement, customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can
withdraw the same units of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on
the maturity date. The customer gold deposits are estimated based on the
fair value of gold deposits outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
The basis of estimation is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where
appropriate. As at 31 December 2017, gold deposits from customers also
included approximately 2,800 (2016: 2,800) taels of gold from certain
management personnel of the Group.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets BE

Foreign currency forward contracts BEHINES A
Liabilities =K

Bullion contracts EeBEY
Cross currency swap RX G H

The bullion contracts, foreign currency forward contracts and a cross
currency swap are stated at their fair values. The above transactions
involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2017, the aggregate contractual amount of the bullion contracts was
HK$378,487,000 (2016: HK$178,320,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into foreign currency forward contracts
and a cross currency swap to manage its foreign currency risk. The foreign
currency forward contracts and a cross currency swap were measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof
amounting to HK$845,000 (2016: HK$18,000) were charged (2016:
credited) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swap entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group's commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swap did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

29.

30.

HithEARRREER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
101,806 73,283
321,897 234,167
40,331 35,787
464,034 343,237
AEERERFRETSRY - BELE
B RERAAEEFAES  REERA
REERBEMN ECETHER - BFPF
SRR BREHRREBTE A FEBE
HEEr o BRTEESHERN  UEEE
BEHER] c RZE—t&F+_fF=+—
B BFEFFEENERAEEETEREA
B2F€#%2,800(=F— 7 F 2,800
) o
TESRIA
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
= 18
3,549 558
845 =
4,394 558

ELBEY  REIINESGHRRX Eis
HRENTFEEYIE - LS RITELR
TAZRSGTHEEER T Z S RHEIENIE
LESCBESARET - R-_T—t&F
T-A=1+—H E2BAHOZENEE
4 {8 /378,487,000 T(ZF — N ¢
178,320,000 7T) o

o REBFTZEBAIESH RN
ERBHEBRHEINERR - Z&E I
BEAONRRXEEESHE AT EBER
TRBFE - FARKABEERINK
(ZE—X"F BEDEQTEEE
B & %8 A 845,000/ L(Z T — N F -
18,0008 7T ) °

AEEFY LA e EEERE
BzAmERRRIINERR - ZFRH
RIS & R TR IR 2 (R
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

31. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 31. FERTER BHREESREEZ
arising from Securities and Futures Broking FFEBITER
2017 2016
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
BHFE B A FEx GBS ) ile THT
% %
Current E
Portion of term loans from K HR{TER—FR
banks due for repayment JBEEHFDTE
within one year HER
- unsecured - IR 16-17 2018 33,176 15-18 2017 39,701
- secured kv 2.3 2018 60,000 1.5-17 2017 230,000
93,176 269,701
Current portion of bank loans ZBR—4 W3 #(EE
due for repayment within ZHRTER L
one year mEEH S
- unsecured - E 25-33 2018 455,371 2.0-3.0 2017 456,567
548,547 726,268
Non-current FRE
Non-current portion of bank AR AT 2RI AEIH
loans due for repayment BEZBRITERZ
within a period of: FnhEs :
More than one year but —ENE
less than two years BIRAE
- unsecured - IR 25-33 2019 360,386 20-3.0 2018 227,654
More than two years but ME L+
less than five years BLRAE
— unsecured - EER 2.6-3.3 2020 93,270 2.0-3.0 2019 132,500
453,656 360,154
1,002,203 1,086,422

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortized cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to

be settled within one year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s banking facilities amounted
to HK$2,932,397,000 (2016: HK$3,142,771,000), of which
HK$1,002,203,000 (2016: HK$1,086,422,000) had been utilized at the
end of the reporting period. Certain of the banking facilities amounting to
HK$470,000,000 (2016: HK$720,500,000) are secured by certain assets of
the Group as disclosed in notes 14, 15 and 20 to the financial statements.

ARBRTER(BRREREBELEHE
HO) TR B ARG B o TR ER —F
REMEEBEREFERGER DA
RARBABZHBAERERBN —FRBE

f&-

R-E—+t&+-_F=+—H A&
Bz iR171= 5% A2,932,397,0007% T
(ZF — /N4 :3,142,771,0005 7T )
REEHRE B HEH1,002,203,000
B (= T — /X F:1,086,422,00075
JL) o & T IRT7{5 §%5 470,000,000 7 7T
(ZF—7% : 720,500,000 7 7T ) LA AR &2
BN BRENT14 15 R20BBEZE
TEEERER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

31.

Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings
arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 32), are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 44(a). As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
New Taiwan dollar HEE

Bl

FERITEN RERMELLELEZ
T ERRITER ()

AERTEE(BRRTERRESBE
BE(MaE32)) AXKBTAETHHLL
T oERANESREBIIZEER
2 e fARBER B - MIEREERA
REREE - WO ARBZETERE
2B 2k TR AR 2 EEERE
B RKIAER G THAKERE
BETHERETEEEREL

AEBRMAEREERTENRECEE
EERERHETZERALER - At
AEERRRBBEEBTZERE  |/IT
HAETEARBERKEZEN - BH
AEEEERDESR R 2 E—FFER
REfEE44) s R=T—tFR=FT—~F
TZA=1—R AEELEEREWY
RiER i

RITEFRBERRZREEATIIES
REAf

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAT

969,027 1,058,721

33,176 27,701

1,002,203 1,086,422

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

e

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
2017 F 3R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

32.

Bullion Loans

Bullion loans EcBfEE

— unsecured - A

— secured - BHEA
Bullion trading facilities ESBRIEE
Contractual interest rate B HFIE
Original maturity RE|EH

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading
companies and the amounts payable are pegged with bullion prices.

As at 31 December 2016, certain of the bullion loan facilities amounting
to HK$200,000,000 were secured by certain assets of the Group as
disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements. The pledge was
released during the year ended 31 December 2017. Certain of the bullion
loan facilities are subject to fulfillment of covenants under the Group's
banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key
management personnel.

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting
period are denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi

ARE
United States dollar TC

e

32. E2BfEE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

1,069,873 702,236

= 54,154

1,069,873 756,390

3,352,947 3,062,758

1.0% - 4.9%
1-6 months A

1.2% - 3.0%
1 - 6 months A

ZHEERBRTRERELBES L AE
B MENFRRESBERENE -

RZBE-—RNE+-A=+—0 ' #W
BBEREWNFTARIGHIBEE B
200,000,000 8 T2 ETECBEERE
UAEBETEEEAER ZEHE
REE-ZE—+tF+-_A=+—HILF
EERR BETELBEEREERFSE
AEBRITEEZHE - FERMBRE
MisE31 4R EE -

EAEEBEEENAREESBERK
NeHhastRE Gt - ENETRWE
ENRERTERRERERRERBRAT
BEEETENFERR  WEEERR
NFEEREARBMBRE  MARZ
FELBRERZENNEABEERAE
B2EREBABRH -

HSRTBEENREHRZEEENT
SERREA -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAT

499,923 263,095

569,950 493,295

1,069,873 756,390
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

33.

Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2016

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss
during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2016 and

1 January 2017

Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to the consolidated statement

of profit or loss
during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position

at 31 December 2017

EEBEAE

R-—Z—X"FE—HF—H

ARER A BERING
/(GEA) ZIBIERIR

B AR

R-Z—RF
TZA=t-Bk
—Z—+F¥—H—H

FARGERRERME
/(GEA) ZBIERIR

B 5

RZZ—+F
+=HA=+—8
RERE T
MRKIERZ
EEFIBEB ELRE

= Ve

33. EEBE
FRELEHIESEREEZINT -
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related  Withholding
depreciation taxes Others Total
HERBE
BEBEETE HERB Hit &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTET TET TERT
38,850 130,113 1,335 170,298
(848) 28,810 (784) 27,178*
(11) - 1 (10)
37,991 158,923 552 197,466
(989) 17,266 770 17,047*
8 = (9 (1)
37,010 176,189 1,313 214,512
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

33.

Deferred Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets

BEDREE

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RFE—A—H

Deferred tax credited/(charged) FENREEIBEERTAS
to the consolidated statement (3B ZEERIA
of profit or loss
during the year
Exchange realignment PE 5 2
At 31 December 2016 and NZT—RF
1 January 2017 +—R=+—HkK
—FT—t%—H—H
Deferred tax credited/(charged) FRARGEEIEBRETAS
to the consolidated statement ($0) TR T8
of profit or loss
during the year
Exchange realignment PE i R
Gross deferred tax assets recognized in RNZZE—+4F
the consolidated statement of financial +-fA=+—H
position at 31 December 2017 R A BT
RREHER 2
BREHRAZEEH
* Net deferred tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the

year amounted to HK$8,872,000 (2016: HK$25,024,000) (note 11).

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$6,621,000
(2016: HK$6,604,000), Mainland China of HK$10,801,000 (2016:
HK$15,284,000) and Macau of HK$44,298,000 (2016: HK$34,495,000).
The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the tax losses
arose, whilst those arising in Macau and Mainland China will expire
in three years and five years, respectively, for offsetting against future
taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is uncertain whether taxable profit will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilized.

33.

DR ()

Decelerated

tax
depreciation Others Total
HEBIERE Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TERT
12,037 (627) 11,410
(188) 2,342 2,154*
(4) (179) (183)
11,845 1,536 13,381
(1,080) 9,255 8,175*
3 654 657
10,768 11,445 22,213

* FARGEBRENRZEEHEFES
8,872,00078 J( = Z — /X 4 : 25,024,000
ws) (MiEE11) o

A& ER %;%FEZ%%IEEHEZ%
6,621,000 L(=Z — 73 : 6,604,000
BIL) RFBABEELAZREBRE
410,801,000 (= T — X F:
15,284,000 70 ) RN BPFEE ZH B
& 18 544,298,000 T(ZF — N F:
34,495,000 L) - REBEE ZHEE
BRI ERPBEREZSEEREBEA
Al Z ARERTRF - MARPIRFPBK
ﬁ*%izwﬁi&ﬁaﬂfm%w FERRER
B EETCRERBERRERN G
Ao RN EEBEBREEBEE —BERE
ZHBRR) LRI REERET RS A ER
%)féiﬁé%llT@H%ﬁélEEﬂémﬁ Q31
SEERARLHBEE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEESEERAERRA

127

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
2017 F 3R



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

33.

34,

35.

Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the People’s Republic of China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Share Capital

Authorized: SERE
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
676,920,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution to the Group and enabling the Group to recruit and retain
valuable employees.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may, at
its discretion, invite any employees, Executive or Non-executive Directors
(including Independent Non-executive Directors), advisers, consultants,
shareholders of any member of the Group or such other persons from
time to time to be an eligible person to whom share options will be
granted as an incentive to attract and retain them for their contributions
to the business development of the Group. The Scheme was approved and
adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2010 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the maximum
number of shares available for issue was 67,739,400, representing 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue.

676,920,000 f% G AR E &
0.258 L2 E@k

33.

34.

1,000,000,000 f& G AR EI &
0.25/8 7.2 &K

35.

DR (F)

RERBECEMERZE - RNPEARIR
B2 NERECERINNIBEEES
R E AR 10% BIRTBIRT - LR E M
—EENF-A—HBER TEAR
—EELFEFA=+—R%Z%HN M
R KR EINBIE B RFTE R A ERA]
BRUWTE - AR EAREM BRI
Ko RSB RFEAR LB 2
BRGNS  ERABEAE5%H10% - A
It AEEEEERZSNHEARLR
B2 HBARIR-_TEENF—A—H
REEZ&MNDIR R EHTERE

ARRAERRIKE 2 BB LB LG
Mo

B
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
250,000 250,000
169,230 169,230
R R

ARRIRAE—ABER 8 ([%arEll) -
RTAARER2REHAKEIEL 2 AR
RTRBNEE RS ASERAEYL
BUAKBAREEZES

RIBEZ B ZHBE - ARAREFG AN
MERFLMESR WTESICENTE
2(BEBLFATES)  BER - &
A REBEMKE AR ZRREZEH
MALTREERAL ARAERER
& FRENSHAREEBERELR
BT IR 51 M0 %8 B 10 55 2 58D - A&RTEIR
22T ALHEARARRELE
BB BRIEZFEIWATIORRERT
TR BEZE SRR TFRNEHY -

RABM S REEMRZER  AJEETZ
RIDE B FIRA67,739,400 % - HER
AABBETRMDZ10% °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

35.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company to each participant in any 12-month period up to the date
of grant shall not exceed 1% of total shares of the Company in issue.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after the
date on which the option is granted as the Directors may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date as
the Directors may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of
grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Directors
provided always that it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

During the year, the movements in the share options to subscribe for the
Company'’s shares under the Scheme were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-ZE—tH&+-A=+—HLEFE

I3

BB 8 (&)

BER2EEEEMNT _EANEERE
BEREERL)  REAFERARAE
E LR SR 2 B TIATTE
B BT REETZROEE LRAE
BERRREBTRNER 1% -

BEERRBEZA BRI ZRTE  NES
ROBRER  RERDZBREZ AKX
HZBFRRTE  BEEEERHERE
R ERE Z B IS E R R A R M
PMERBERT - ;MR EBREE A (AR
HREBREROER  MRBREZRD
BEZ)EFA BB T -

BREERARIREBREZZYN &
ARRHENZ AR=1THER(BERN
ENER)RREMZEN - REXRH
B HE C RAORS - RIS 1.0087T

BRECTEENRESET  HETE
BRAELBATERE  ()ARRARHOR
S4B EER TS HRERMTIZ KT
B (NARARHREEELHBHAS @
RHAEBRRIERRERMINZTY
Wi B ¢ K (i) AR RIS AR 2 EME

FR - Z BT READ ARG 2 BRE
g

Number of share options

BREHE

Exercise Balance Granted Lapsed Balance
Date of price as at during during as at
Eligible person grant per share 1/1/2017 the year the year 31/12/2017
RERAL REAH BRITEE R=B—t%F FRRE FRRH N=ZB—t%F
HK$ —R—H +=A=+—-H

Continuous contract

employees”

HEANER’ 22/7/2016 14.89 7,465,000 - (602,000) 6,863,000
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MRS AR

35.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-ZE-—ARE+-A=+—-HLEFE

I3

BB 8 (&)

Number of share options

BRESE
Exercise Balance Granted Lapsed Balance
Date of price as at during during as at
Eligible person grant per share 1/1/2016 the year the year 31/12/2016
AERAL =l BRITEE RZZE—REF FRRM FRRK RZZE—REF
HK$ —A—H +=-A=+—H
BT e #eh
Continuous contract
employees
HEANESR' 22/7/2016 14.89 - 7,531,000 (66,000) 7,465,000

Continuous contract employees include an associate of a director, Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing who held 105,000 (2016: 105,000) share options.

Share options granted in July 2016 are exercisable during the period from 31
December 2017 to 30 December 2020 in two batches, being:

. 31 December 2017 to 30 December 2020 (up to 50% of the share options
granted are exercisable)

o 31 December 2018 to 30 December 2020 (all share options granted are
exercisable)

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date on which
the share options were granted on 22 July 2016 was HK$14.50.

No share options were exercised and cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).

The fair value of the share options granted for the year ended 31 December
2016 was HK$20,774,000. The Group recognized a share option expense of
HK$9,045,000 (2016: HK$4,570,000) (note 6) for the year ended 31 December
2017.

SEANEEREESZ—EHEAL
BxEELL - 1t E 105,00013 (ZF—7~
4 1 105,000 19 ) BEARAE -

RZF-—RNFLABLZERETR
—E—+&E+-A=+-—HE_T_THF
TZ A=+ HEES R T AT - B

« “EF-tEt-A=+-AE
—F-ET-A= AT
% 50% 2 EEHRE)

. —E-N\F+-_HA=+—HE
—ZE-RF+ - A=TRAIIE
2HEREBRE)

REEBRER-Z—~"FLtA=1+=
BEHAHAZARAIROETER
14.50 87T °

BE-Z—+tE+-A=+—BItFEE "
WEERETERFH CE-—AE:
z)-

BE-_Z-—R"E+-_A=t—-HLEER
HEEE 2 A FEEA20,774,000 BT
AEBEREE_T—+F+=A=1+—8
IEFENHER 2 BR R 2 59,045,000
BIL(=ZZ—7~F + 4,570,000 7T ) (K
6) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

35.

36.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2016 was estimated as at the date of grant using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model
used:

Dividend yield (%) & S ER K (%)
Expected volatility (%) TEHDR 18 (%)

Risk-free interest rate (%)
Expected life of options (year)
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past five years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 6,863,000 (2016:
7,465,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 6,863,000 (2016:
7,465,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$1,716,000 (2016: HK$1,866,000) and share premium
of HK$100,474,000 (2016: HK$109,288,000) (before share issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 6,361,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.9% of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 58 and 59 of the financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to
reserve funds which are restricted as to use.

RN E (%)
B TR F ()
EFHBE(SRET)

33

36.

fERR s 8 (&)

RBE_Z-—RF+-_A=t—HIFE
AR L 2 B EE BN A FEE
Tp R B R A R ARE R 8 E
JFf 45 o R B 2 R R R AR T 28 o
TREJFARARB 25t AR ¢

3.9371
31.3810
0.6203
4.44
14.80

BRECEAFHIRBAERFIES
HIBETE - RVBERBRATBE IR 2 e
TR - DRI RBRE 2% 8D 2 R
BBERERR  ATRLRERER -

PR B RS R B A AT
5 -

RBEBRR NAREZNETHSR
6,863,00015 (= T — /< F : 7,465,000
D)MAITEZERE - BEARAF
BAEBRAREE BEOENRTEZ
B KD A% 176,863,000 %
(ZF — X F:7,465,0000% ) %8 40 T
B I F O Bk A1,716,0008 T
(ZT— 7N % : 1,866,000/ 7T ) & &K H
%18 A 100,474,0008 (=2 — N ¢
109,288,000 7% 7t ) (K Bk B 10 % 17 B
%)

RAFHKHRERBZER  RRARE
ZET %A 6,361,00017 K 1T 2 B
B ERRRARZBZEETROL
0.9% °

e

AR ERERERRBEFE 2
SR 5% 58 B 50 B 2 R A B
BHER -

REBERREIBRELE ZHBREER
ER AEBRNPEARKMBRL 2
BRRZEHENEBRAERGRTRH 2
FEs -
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MRS AR

37.

Business Combination

On 6 February 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry Company Limited (“Shunde Jinpeng”)
from independent third parties. Shunde Jinpeng is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of jewellery. The acquisition was made as part of
the Group's strategy to strengthen the Group’s production capacity. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with
RMB1,370,000 (equivalent to HK$1,573,000) paid on 31 October 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Shunde Jinpeng

37. BEAHt

R-Z—RE-AXNE AEFRBUS
ZhHEBERLTIEERCERE E AR
EEAFNTIEEEHE]) 2 100% #x © B
BEBEREHRBEREREE - 2 hBEE
AREBIBEERNZRBES 3R -
ZWBEE WERER-_Z— A EF+A
=+—HUESLZ 1,370,000 T A RHE
(ZEM1,573,000/87T) °

IEEEBERKER 2 IBMEERAER

at the date of acquisition were as follows: FEEWLT
Fair value
recognized
on acquisition
U HEEIR
R
NFEE
HK$'000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment M - MEREE 69
Inventories FE 9,578
Accounts receivable FEYBR R 117
Other receivables Hfh RS BR 3R 284
Cash and cash equivalents RekEREE 4,450
Accounts payable JE 1 BRX (9.264)
Other payables and accruals Hi AR R EETIE R (2,748)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEESECETTHANEEFE 2,486
Less: R
Gain on bargain purchase recognized in other losses, net — R4R& B8R 2 HAh &8 -
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss FERRAZZBEE RS 913
Satisfied by cash VAR @181 1,573

The fair values of the accounts receivable and other receivables at the date
of acquisition amounted to HK$117,000 and HK$284,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group incurred transaction
costs of HK$280,000 for this acquisition. These transaction costs were
expensed and included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

EWEE R R EMEREFRNWER 22
FEED B A 117,000 7T &% 284,000 78
ﬁ: °

REBE-_Z—"F+_A=+—HItFE
A AEERZBESEEE 2R IHA
£280,0008 7T - ZERHKNARGEE
= iR 2 8E AR ©
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MRS AR

37.

38.

Business Combination (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2016 in
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

ReAE

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances acquired

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash
flows from investing activities

Transaction costs of the acquisition included in cash flows
from operating activities

Shunde Jinpeng is one of the Group's production facilities which carries
out internal manufacturing of jewellery for Group companies. Since
all intra-group income and expenses relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, the disclosure of revenue and
profit or loss of Shunde Jinpeng since the acquisition date and for the
period had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year
ended 31 December 2016 is impracticable.

Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

At 1 January 2017 R=Z—tF—F—H

Changes from financing cash flows HEREREL

Foreign exchange movement N

Net loss on bullion loans designated as at 1#E AE AV EBEIT EREL
fair value through profit or loss EeBEETER

Net fair value loss on bullion loans BEREATFEAEICREZ
designated as at fair value through EEBIEENQTER
profit or loss B

At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+=-H=+—H

37.

BXE 6 ()

BE_Z—REFT-A=+—BLEFEK
BZMBRRAIZHSREDNAT :

HK$'000
THET

(1,573)

PREER & RIRTTHER

AARBEBZHERE
ZREREFAREZRAFER

AARERBZRTRE
ZWRER 2 X5

IBREEAREEEET S —

4,450

2,877

(280)

2,597

EWES

EARETABKERE - ERAEEE
ARBRZBAEF N GEAREAE
Y ARREERR - WEIRESE
BEUWEAERMAHRBEE_FT—AF
TZAZt-RLFEVCETZERE

FBRRBRBAAIT

38. GERSREBRME

RMETDES AEE
Interest-
bearing bank
borrowings
arising from
Interest- securities and
bearing bank futures
borrowings broking  Bullion loans
REeEEZ
FERITER FERTEX ESERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
856,422 230,000 756,390
86,708 (170,000) 210,070
(927) - 28,516
- - 44,485
- = 30,412
942,203 60,000 1,069,873
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MRS AR

39.

Operating Lease Arrangements 39.

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
also require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

—FR
“ERF EREMEERER

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and retail shops
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties
and shops are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ZERF  ERMEEEEA
After five years Bkt

In addition to the minimum future rental payments disclosed above,
the Group has commitments to pay contingent rents based on a
proportion of turnover for certain leased retail shops. Contingent
rents are not included in the above commitments as it is not
possible to estimate the amounts which may be payable.

Certain of these leases have escalation clauses and renewal rights.

REBNRH

(a)

(b)

HAEA

AEBNGEROLRHEHERE
W (HEE15) - KRR EHE
R—EZF - ORI —REFRE
BExftrERe RRBEEHETSR
RETHESHE -

R=ZZ—tF+=ZA=+—H ' &
SEFERFITE T HE 2 LE
B ZIEHA - KARKERERE
YoR@EmT -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR THET
9,265 7,469
3,556 2,299
12,821 9,768
3N

$%Euméﬂ%tﬁ%ﬂa¥%
Eﬁﬁ%@%ﬁﬂiﬁ%*§+¢°

RZBE—tFE+-A=+—H"
AEBER TR 2 LERY 7
FHE - ARREBEEMNRARE
mE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
632,464 717,229
494,326 827,984
15,578 16,949
1,142,368 1,562,162

bR £ X EE 2 AR R B e 5K
o REBBETABENTER
MARBEREEBAILINMM
FAEE - AR AL TR A B8
XNHEE RAEEIL FFA
A AE

ZEETHOMFHBERLED
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MRS AR

40.

41.

Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 39(b)
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for BE#E] - BAREE
Property, plant and equipment ERN e

= A RK N

Capital contributions payable to a joint venture BfFE—KEERA

Connected and Related Party Transactions

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with connected and/or related parties during the year

40. H&iE

BR LSt B 5 39(b) #8248 = M A B
o AEERBRERREUT ZEARE

=

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TET
16,857 4,551
486,284 452,061
503,141 456,612

4. BEALRS

(a) HEBAZSHMM&:.A@*B D EEZ
RN ARENFARR
%@)\ﬂfx#&lﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂlﬁk 1TATF

at mutually agreed terms: BEARS :
Nature of transactions Relationship 2017 2016
RHEUE B& HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Rental expenses for the lease of a retail shop  Certain Directors of the Company
who have beneficial interests
in thgproperty R
METEEH e ARRETESNZNFRER
EnEm 3,825 3,960
Rental expenses for the lease of quarters of Related companies in which certain
the Company's Directors Directors of the Company have
) beneﬂaal interests
HERRAEZEE 2 HEHAX V7N Tﬁ?i%%ﬁ“m £
E 890 960
Consultancy expenses for the provision of A related company in which family
image consultancy services to the Group members of a Director of the
. Company have beneficial interests
RAEEREFREN RS2 ERRS ARR|—BEZZGEREHS
EnkEa L BERT 851 1,564

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

tilFiEEEA LR ZIMEK £
MARAE+MAZFRRE 2 HERH
BR G LU FRE ETHA
FUUAIKERERR  FEE
% NERBIIRRAEZERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

41.

42.

Connected and Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees
Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable
Equity-settled share option expense
Pension scheme contributions

e loRRh

BN RENEIEEA
BE 2 BBIER X
BRE B

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2017

Financial assets

Financial assets included in
other assets
Available-for-sale investments
Accounts receivable
Receivables arising from
securities and futures broking
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Cash held on behalf of clients
Cash and cash equivalents

—B—tF
MBEE

BEEHMBEY

HEEE
A HERE
W RR

BRMERLELY

JEARAR

BEAERNIUR - &S
N B At AR TR 2

MBEE

BAYEEIEEBZ

KRE
REFHAHS
RehERHAE

4. BEAIRZ(E)
(b) AEEIEEEAEHE

FRENRENEBEEABZM
%R BHEENNENARFH
TEZZE%  #T -

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT
1,000 1,000
33,535 36,999
8,994 5,466
2,566 1,367
1,197 1,427
47,292 46,259

EEWSE S FBIARNUBRE
BizES

42, RENSEZSWMIA
RBEBPR SEAzeBTAREE

LU
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
BNV EE
AEREZ
HBEE EXR A&
- REEE PEWBRRR BBEE &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FTEx THEx THER
- 204,419 - 204,419
- - 874,000 874,000
- 920,088 - 920,088
- 984,906 - 984,906
- 68,427 - 68,427
17,073 - - 17,073
- 515,659 - 515,659
- 1,199,915 - 1,199,915
17,073 3,893,414 874,000 4,784,487
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BRERSBERMIA(H)

42. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 42.

2017 (continued)

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Bullion loans

2016

Financial assets

Financial assets included in
other assets
Available-for-sale investments
Accounts receivable
Receivables arising from
securities and futures broking
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments
Cash held on behalf of clients
Cash and cash equivalents

2t (®
BREE

BT RRR

B RBERLEL L
EAHRRAR
BEEAMBRNRRL
[EEtIRE 2B RE

TESMT A

AFRRITER

BEeBEE

—=—
MBEE

>k
Rill

BEHEMEEL
HIFEE
AHEERE

R R

B RPERLEL L
M AR
BEAERNRE KBS
REMEKRIRR
HEEE

BAFEEEEBL
KA

TEEMTA

REFHANHS

RekFERRE

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

BAVEETERBMBAE

Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortized
recognition trading cost Total
REDR BB RESHER A A .
EERIER KEEE HReUBEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTET TERT TERT
- - 122,071 122,071
- - 574,048 574,048
- - 264,895 264,895
- 4,394 - 4,394
- - 1,002,203 1,002,203
1,069,873 - - 1,069,873
1,069,873 4,394 1,963,217 3,037,484
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Available-
profit or loss for-sale
- held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
HATEE
AIERE.L \ ‘
BISEE HHR A E .
- FHIFEE JE U B R BBEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
- 231,621 - 231,621
- - 763,180 763,180
= 791,681 = 791,681
- 826,332 — 826,332
= 41,552 = 41,552
33,078 — — 33,078
18 - - 18
- 426,002 - 426,002
- 1,282,809 — 1,282,809
33,096 3,599,997 763,180 4,396,273
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

42.

43.

Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

42,

BRERSBERMIA(E)

2016 (continued) —E-RE(E)
Financial liabilities B aE
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
BAFEEERELMBEEE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortized
recognition trading cost Total
RARTER 28 SEIDAVN ‘
HERULER RHIEEE HRIUBAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FET FET
Accounts payable FERTBE R = = 263,387 263,387
Payables arising from securities ~ EHREELLELE Y
and futures broking AN - - 419,717 419,717
Financial liabilities included in BEEHEMEMERRK
other payables and accruals EstEB 2B AE - - 191,313 191,313
Derivative financial instruments ~ $7T4$ @ T A - 558 - 558
Interest-bearing bank FERTER
borrowings = = 1,086,422 1,086,422
Bullion loans EBEE 756,390 - - 756,390
756,390 558 1,960,839 2,717,787
Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments 43. SRMIAZAVEERAFEESHR

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals and bank borrowings due for repayment
within one year approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings, bullion loans and other borrowings as at 31
December 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

RBERR  AEECHMBEERAEZ
FHEEEATEERS

BTEECFEREES  EFRAEREL
EEZEWBER B2 EBNTA &
REMEYERCMEEE  REFPHA
RAe RENFRARE  BHRNK &5
FHEREELZERNES  BREEM
ENERREFRE CMBRER
FREHEEZRTERZAFE
RHERS  TEHNZEIAR
PEIE] -

Vi
43

N

i
8

&

VBEENBRZATER  KRTRER
BREE - DUARTERNENR ST %
TAARMZ AR - AEt AT EER
ERTUATIERRR :

HEERAR —FRYBEEZRTE
RN FEEREREERS  AHERE
ELFBARELGR  FERREAT
FMACTAZ R ERNRFRER
HRAKATRE - FEEAR_FT—LF
TZAZ+ AR ERITER  EEE
e B % EL At B SR 3 2 N PR 4 R BR AT £
RYTEKX o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair value of the unlisted available-for-sale equity investment
stated at fair value has been estimated using the income capitalization
method. The valuation requires the management to make estimate about
the capitalization rates. Management believes that the estimated fair
value resulting from the valuation technique, which is recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related change in fair
value, which is recorded in other comprehensive income, are reasonable,
and that they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on
open market prices of bullion.

As at 31 December 2017, certain unlisted equity investments with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$260,000 (2016: HK$260,000) were
stated at cost because there is a wide range of possible fair value
measurements so that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2017, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts,
foreign currency forward contracts and a cross currency swap which
are measured based on bullion market prices, forward pricing and swap
pricing respectively. The carrying amounts of the bullion contracts, foreign
currency forward contracts and cross currency swap are the same as their
fair values.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the valuation of
financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

Valuation

technique unobservable

Significant

input

EPN DY Ed

fEE R

As at 31 December 2017
R=—Z—tF+=A=+—H

Income
capitalization
method

Unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment

F EmA gt BB
KRE

WABERALE

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZE-R"FE+ZRA=1t—H

Income
capitalization
method

Unlisted available-for-sale equity
investment

F EmA gt ER D
RE

WABALE

2

Capitalization rate

N4

Capitalization rate

BAME R

43.

TRIAZAVEERAVTEESR(E)

IHBRNKRE 2 D FEEHREDSRE
AE  BRATEEIRZFLTAHEE
BB 2 A FEEDRARAERE
R - ZRABEEREEEHER L
LR (ERfhEt - EEER AR ERNE
A2 fhEt A FEEEREA MBI ARL
ELEBATEEZS R E M2 RS
iR YBAE  RARNBSHRAREE
ZEfE-

BEeBEENEPEFEAVERNRE
B2 AAHENE

NZZB—+E+-A=1+—0 BN
Bz AT EENENFEERS  EFR
AEFNSHAEENATEE  HREA
{8260,000787L( == —754F : 260,0005
T0) 2 B TIEE TR IE TR A S o

AKEECERFZERMBERIERE
TBESRAFTUMMESRIE - R®
B4 F+-A=+—R TEERT
AR RESEBMEERFEZESE
Ak REERTE EZRINES N N
HERHEZXNERESR  E2EA
A BISNER R RN R R IRE
EEENFEERR -

UTRERTAGEZEABNBRAE
MBERSCBRED :

Sensitivity of the

Range input to fair value
HEHATER

GE TERE
4.1% to 1% increase/decrease
5.0% in capitalization rate
would result in decrease/

increase in fair value by

HK$196,000

4.1% % ER{ctREMHD> 1%
5.0% BEHQATVEERD
#10196,000 & T

4.3% to 1% increase/decrease
5.4% in capitalization rate
would result in decrease/

increase in fair value by

HK$188,000

43%% B EEM, B 1%
5.4% BERNTEERD

#£10188,0007& 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments.

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2017

Available-for-sale investments:
Equity investments

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2016

Available-for-sale investments:
Equity investments

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments

43, S@MIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

AFEESER
TREINAKEEMTIAZ A FEEAE

24 -
RATBENE AR

Fair value measurement using

RAUTEE 2 AP EETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
JERWS BEAATEHE EBEAEUBR
HE - -
(& 51—) (& B1=) (/BI=) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERx FTERx FERx FEx
R=2—+tF
+=A=+-H
A ERE
Rin1R & 854,120 - 19,620 873,740
BATRETE
BB RE 17,073 - - 17,073
871,193 = 19,620 890,813
R-ZB—RF
+=A=+-~H
A ERE
Rin1R & 744,122 = 18,798 762,920
BATRERE
BRERE 33,078 - - 33,078
TEEMIA - 18 - 18
777,200 18 18,798 796,016

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Unlisted available-for-sale investments

At 1 January

Total gain recognized in other comprehensive

income

At 31 December

FRARAN=2 A FEEFEEDHNT :

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL
FEMAHEERE

n—H—H 18,798 18,431

REMEERSHERZ
e iazE 822 367
W+=-—B=+—8 19,620 18,798
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

43.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2017

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

As at 31 December 2016

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

R=B—tfF
+=A=t+-AH

EcEBEE
TESMIA
ZEES

Fair value measurement using

43, SMIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

AFPEESR(E)

BRAVEEHEZEE

RANTEE 2 A VEEFE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E BT S EARUBE EAHUBE
HW e e K
(&% 51—) (& B1=) (/BI=) At
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
1,069,873 - - 1,069,873
- 4,394 - 4,394
40,331 - - 40,331
1,110,204 4,394 - 1,114,598
756,390 - - 756,390
- 558 - 558
35,787 - - 35,787
792,177 558 - 792,735

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

TR MHEERMBEREZRR—ER
BI—ZFHERNTEEHESYR  TEE
AFEHRR= -
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MRS AR

44,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarized below.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollar floating-rate borrowings, assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50-basis point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2017 and 2016
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$3,667,000 and HK$3,710,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the interest rate used is considered reasonable, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities. The Group has the legal
capacity to quickly recall such loans or re-price its loans to an
appropriate level. A 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest
rates at 31 December 2017 and 2016 would have increased/
decreased the Group's profit before tax by HK$4,634,000 and
HK$4,012,000 respectively. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets carried at the end of the reporting period was
carried for the whole year. The sensitivity to the interest rate used
is considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax.

44, BHREREEBEERBE

(a)

MEEREER

AEEIEZSRTABRERGTE
FERE RRTER - HESHT
B TERENRASEEBE
SEe - AREBETHOBYMHK
EF&E@XEﬁﬁéiﬁEQ?
A0 B MR K SRR K

AEEZERRAREEIRIYHS
BTS2 H TR - WS IRIE
HAREBEBBRBBR ZBERF
YE-BREEIHEEEREE
%AHVZﬁmLﬁ i & 3 £
REBZEBEMNEREIE - Ak
A FHE REREBER o

AEESRTAMELZTEZRR

ARAMERR  IERR - FER
h*mﬁﬁéﬂ ‘%ﬁgﬁﬁﬁ

&?ﬁuu{ﬁwﬂ R %%@%E@E@
ETXFAHAEESELERR 2
BK -

VI
AEERFEMBEERBEZT
REABBMAZHEER - 58
WBEETBRRARETPEN
AERMBEEIERRITEN
ERFHAEGE - EHRKEA
RASRENERER

HABTTEBFEERME * RER
ﬁi%XNKZ%Lﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
m&r#m FER=_ZE—LFER
—E-RE+ZA=t—8%mN/
A0 EES - BaRIRD, /K
7N & [ Bk B4 A1 s F1 3,667,000 7T
53,710,000 7T ° 7EFTA H b2 2K
%%T“&JAEHME%% 12
ERT  AEERBHAFNEZ
FRETBAIE -

REEZFERRBRITREFREE
REMEREY  NEBHEHFE
TR BRANR I B R E 3K ak
B EEREBEKRTF - AR
—E+ER-_T-—RE+=-A
=+—A%mMm/ B0 EEL
#“%PM/H4$EI%MW
& #4,634,000% 7T & 4,012,000
BT o AT I ERAR A IR A BRI
FZEESHEINEREETIEM
EY o ERTEEMEHERTER
Hkﬁﬁmﬁ%gmz\RT ¥

BERABHMANE 2 HRETB
/\IE ®
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MRS AR

44,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and

considers utilizing hedging instruments should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising
from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than
the units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical
review of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and
used foreign currency forward contracts and cross currency swap
to manage certain of its foreign currency exposures on significant
and recurring future commercial transactions. Hedging is only

considered for firm commitments.

The Group's assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with

loans denominated in the relevant currencies.

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities
and futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to
the credit risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's retail sales of jewellery are usually transacted on a cash
basis, via popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group's credit sales to corporate clients
and wholesale customers are generally on credit terms within 60
days. The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
with respect to its jewellery retail business as it has a large number
of diversified customers. For accounts receivable arising from the
wholesale of diamonds and precious metals, the Group trades
only with recognized and creditworthy third parties and bullion
banks. The Group’s receivables from margin clients arising from
the ordinary course of business of dealing in securities are secured
by the underlying pledged securities. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has its credit
control policy to minimize the credit risk. In addition, all receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and overdue balances
are followed up by senior management. Accordingly, the Group's

exposure to bad debts is not significant.

44, HHEBREERBERBEE)

(a)

MEEBEE ()

T (%)

AEB 2 R TETE INEINER
BZBERTZRMEE M HE-
BESN + AN SR B DR R 2R R B R K
T RRERERZERAEHT
Ao

SMESR

AEEZXHEBERIBERG X
BEMAEN RSN 2 BHEE
TZEE - ERER T RERHNE
B R ERETE R YNEE
MR R I NG REEH
BARBEURRBEXH ZET
SMNERLRR - AREERREE AL
T8 -

AEBEZBERBRIENET
ARBRETREM - EEINE
BRI ERAIINEERRTF LR
BEERTHOBE -

ERER
FRUER R EF I RERLELZ
BURERATIARBEARZ ZEHF T
BOMEAZIEZEERAR &%
RRREN A MBARRERT UL F
MBEEZREE AEEKE
TEHERREURS BBERE
AREREERFIIBCEE
DAETR S - AREALEEP
BHBERFET 2 EEHE —RIE
ANTARZBRERIET - HRKE
TEXBRAREDHER B
BEAKPZEERR - H#AR
BEeBHBEEL CRIET A%
BEEERANEEECE=ER
EHETRS  AREREAREE
BHERREELACRUARER
FPHRFABRC B EEA o
5 B 9760 HA B WO BR SR A A AR 42
Bl WREEEEHBRARESE
ERg - g5 - A RS R
BEHEER  ARERERRE
BABRE - Aty AEE 2R
BBRITERX -
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MRS AR

44,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, cash held on behalf of clients,
financial assets included in other assets, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, and derivative financial instruments, arises from
default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to

the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable and receivables arising
from securities and futures broking are disclosed in notes 22 and 23

to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All
debts of the Group as at 31 December 2017 would mature within

three years.

44, BHEBREERBERBEE)

(a)

M EBEE(5)

ERmER (&)
AEBEMPBEE  TREER
2 RERRE  KEPHART
BEEAMEE  BNFUR R
REMRU RS 2 HIEEERITE
TRIE HEERBELARS
HFTEA - MEEERASRIL
FTAZKME(E °

REBEAT 7 ZE RS EUIEER
NEBEERPECLEE 2 ERER
E4 - BHEERBRzE—FE/
BRRBERENT22 R 23 WK

Zo

HEE LR
AEBEZVRFRERFARSE
REBAEBRBRHAKE  BAE
SEEFERHBESRENATRE
K2 T8 - AEBEMBAPIZE
TREBERARTEEEER LT
BURBEER M2 IS TE - AR
AEEMEERARPEREFR - &
SEEBRGEEUHA LA
FERE  GRARERENEE
BEREN R _T—+FT_A
=+—B  AEEMEBRAR=
FRIE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

44. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 4. HEEREEAERBE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIHEREZEHE)
Liquidity risk (continued) REEDEE(F)

RBEHR - AEEHBARR
ERIAERITRFRE 2 2IH1E

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows: R
2017 —E—tF
No fixed
terms of 1 year or
repayment/ less but 5 years or
repayable 3 months over less but
on der;ané or less 3 months over 1 year Undated Total
EE
EEH/ B =f&R =@ANL —ENE
BEREE FHUT EZ-F ZhE EER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER THEr TR THERr THET
Accounts payable E{SBEF 91,337 30,734 - - - 122,071
Payables arising  #HRHELL
from securities A4 7 FER
and futures R
broking 516,652 57,396 - - - 574,048
Financial liabilities &% H b fEf
included in BRI fERT
other payables TR 2B %
and accruals = 95,433 169,462 = - = 264,895
Derivative financial fT4 &g T A
instruments - 2,927 845 - 622 4,394
Term loans subject & ZK(EEFH
to repayment ZERER
on demand
clause 93,176 - - - - 93,176
Other interest-  H izt 88R17
bearing bank =F:
borrowings - 138,093 336,084 462,459 - 936,636
Bullion loans EEEfEE - 861,936 207,937 - - 1,069,873
796,598 1,260,548 544,866 462,459 622 3,065,093
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

44,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

44, HHEBREERBERBEE)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMEEKREZE(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) FEELER(E)
2016 —E-RF
No fixed terms 1 year or
of repayment/ less but 5 years or
repayable 3 months over less but
on demand or less 3 months over 1 year Undated Total
EEE
BEs/ B =R Z=@EAMNE —FE
REKER AT E— ERF EHAR ai
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAT TET TR
Accounts payable E{FEEF 146,989 116,398 - = = 263,387
Payables arising ~ #FHRHELL
from securities F"_{ZE&E\H
and futures R
broking 370,352 49,365 - - - 419,717
Financial liabilities &8 7 E fth fE <
included in R R AT
other payables BB 2B #%
and accruals =1 76,851 114,462 - - - 191,313
Derivative financial $T£ £ T &
instruments - 478 - - 80 558
Term loans subject & ZK(EZE FH
to repayment ZEHER
on demand
clause 269,701 — - = = 269,701
Other interest-  Efzt 84817
bearing bank B
borrowings - 147,269 324,788 368,418 - 840,475
Bullion loans EcREEE - 675,825 80,565 - - 756,390
863,893 1,103,797 405,353 368,418 80 2,741,541
Equity price risk R E1EE S
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities B ERRRIERNES 2 ATFE

decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as available-for-sale investments (note
20) and investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 25)
as at 31 December 2017. The Group's listed investments are listed
on the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the listed equity
investments are held for non-trading purposes.

BRRGDEEKT RIEREAE
EHREHM TR AR - 1F
EIBRNEREC R FEEXTS
ﬁ%&ﬁ@l%%% AEER

—tF+HA=+—BHIR
ETM&%&%WHHW&EQ
FEEITEREB 2REME2)
Z (8RB 0 50& B M A B B 1%
BB o REE 2 EHRERE M
L AREHR R EE
REBD LHBROBRETLFHEFER
i
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

44,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the available-
for-sale equity investments is deemed to be on the investment
revaluation reserve and no account is given for factors such as
impairment which might impact on the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

2017 —2—tF

Investments listed in Hong Kong: REBLMZEBE :
Available-for-sale AEHE
Held-for-trading RHIEEE

2016 —B-RE

Investments listed in Hong Kong: REBLMZEE :
Available-for-sale AEHE
Held-for-trading RHIEEE

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments,
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures
are monitored by management.

For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2017 and 2016 would
have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$145,191,000 and HK$93,527,000 respectively. The sensitivity
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. This
information has not taken into account potential financial impact
on other financial statement line items.

a4,
(a)

Carrying
amount
of equity

investments

BHRE2
SREE
HK$'000
TER

854,120
17,073

744,122
33,078

B ERERBERBER)

MEEBEE(H)

R ERERE (&)

TRERER &SRR REE
8 RAARMEHAE REt AL
ARBEFZMERNETEXNTER
B10%EH 2 HRE - RADMN
mE  HAHEERNREZAH
TEBRRREREBEMLFRENT
£ QY B MRES IR ER

BERRCEE -
Increase/
decrease Increase/
in profit decrease
before tax in equity
BB AR A g,/
2,/ wd L
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THER
- 85,412
1,707 -
- 74,412
3,308 -
Bon (B 15 Bl f

AEBNEHERE  BRESE
Em- B2BMHX2RALME
HEHRERTE - S BEBAK
A REH AR B 2 B AR A B A A
T pREAmERER &A%
EERECBEEURESBAN
ENESRMIE  UREESEE
BKBHECBFE 2RRALE -
Eﬁ@@%%@ﬁ@%%%Z@ i

HECBEERECBAOME
BERREPRERZEEIR
BEEELER E2BWER
T+t ER TR E+_-A
=+—BEM/HP10% 5
AR D /18I0 AN & B B Bt A A
145,191,000 7T % 93,527,000 7T ©
e EMBEERTE R AL
MHREFERNZBERT » NEER
AERESBMEZREE B
B o BB EE EH MK
HREBECEBENBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

44,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions and business strategies.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and repay debts or issue
new shares. The Group is required to comply with certain externally
imposed capital requirements set out in certain of its banking
facility agreements. Additionally, certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures broking, which are regulated entities under
the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC"), and
a subsidiary which is a member of the CGSE, are required to comply
with respective minimum capital requirements imposed by the SFC
and the CGSE. During the two years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, these subsidiaries complied with respective minimum capital
requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity. Total borrowings include interest-
bearing bank borrowings, interest-bearing bank borrowings arising
from securities and futures broking and bullion loans. Total equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

Total borrowings BEE
Total equity Gy

BARRBHLE

Gearing ratio

44, HHEBREERBERBEE)

(b)

BEXER

AEBEAER 2T ZABRRRE
AEBERFERERB 2N Lk
FREZEAL X U EER
REMR 2 EE

AEBRCBR AR EE R &
HEBEEALERE  UHHEELH
o BB ABREARER  AE
B ARRRERGT 2RE - &
MEEEEEKETHR - A5E
BETEETROMEREME
HTIMEBARBE ° foN - BT
BRENEFZAFARBELLERT
AEAEFMPEERERTE S
([BES)MECIAEER U
E—RWBARIASREESHHZ
B8 ZERAREETEEESRSE
REZEFSERIBARKELRR
T -REE-_Z—tFR-ZF—X
F+-_A=+—HIMEEE
ZENMBARETEESREIRE
BB SEBRIZEERRE °
HE_ZtFER-_ZT—F+=A
=+—BLEE AKEEBEEX
ZBE - BRI EELEE -

FEERERBBELXR(AEEE
Hibagn ) ERER . BIEER
EAERTER BEFRHEL
RELEZAERTERRECER
E o BREROEARARERAA
ElEERZFRARD - REBZIK
RARERB B XERFESIEK
T RmEMRZERE B EN
T

v

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
TR THET
2,072,076 1,842,812
10,125,075 9,037,898
20.5% 20.4%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

45. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 45. EHEMBEERNBEE
The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to TREJIRBERRZEHAR BT
offsetting at the end of the reporting periods. =4
2017
Gross amounts
of recognized Net amounts
financial of financial Related amounts
liabilities set assets presented not set off in the consolidated
off in the in the statement of financial position
consolidated consolidated FERGEUBERRET
Gross amounts statement of statement B HESE
of recognized financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
WA RERETH
HRRP Ve
2R E#vERR 2R 2HEHA
HBEEAE BIp e rek s EERR $RIE REHAR BR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Assets EE
Accounts receivable JEULEE R 922,997 (2,909) 920,088 - = 920,088
Receivables arising from &% R H&E4
securities and futures 4 2 el
broking 5N 1,077,890 (92,984) 984,906 - - 984,906
2,000,887 (95,893) 1,904,994 - - 1,904,994
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognized of financial
financial liabilities Related amounts
assets set presented not set off in the consolidated
off in the in the statement of financial position
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated RERGREMBMRRRT
of recognized statement of statement i | R
financial financial of financial Financial ~ Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
RERREH WEREHH
DL VL
BER B2 BER 2H 8 BEH
g asRpt IBEEER SR SRIA REHRR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEr Thn TiEx THr TR TiEn
Liabilities 8
Accounts payable JEFEER 124,980 (2,909) 122,071 - - 122,071
Payables arising from  EHRHELLT
securities and futures  E /4 2 JEft
broking R 667,032 (92,984) 574,048 - - 574,048
792,012 (95,893) 696,119 - - 696,119
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MR E M

45. Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued) 45, EENBEERMKAEG(E)
2016
Gross amounts
of recognized Net amounts
financial of financial Related amounts
liabilities set  assets presented not set off in the consolidated
off in the in the statement of financial position
consolidated consolidated RERGEBBHRRSD
Gross amounts statement of statement B AERE
of recognized financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
financial assets position position instruments pledged Net amount
REREETE RERE 8%
HRKT HRKS
BHR Bz BRER 2R G BER
HHEERS ke RER BERE SRIE BeHAm A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL THT THET THET THEL THET
Assets BE
Accounts receivable JEURER R 791,742 (61) 791,681 - - 791,681
Receivables arising from &% R HEE4
securities and futures  E4 2 el
broking R 903,347 (77,015) 826,332 = - 826,332
1,695,089 (77,076) 1,618,013 - - 1,618,013
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognized of financial
financial liabilities Related amounts
assets set presented not set off in the consolidated
off in the in the statement of financial position
Gross amounts consolidated consolidated RERGERBAR RS
of recognized statement of statement BizEEeR
financial financial of financial Financial Cash collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
NSRS Wza it
HRKF HRKS
BH#R BH7BRER ER 8 BER
I akes HBAESR BEFE ERIA BeHAR H#H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THx T THL THL
Liabilities =t
Accounts payable IR 263,448 (61) 263,387 = = 263,387
Payables arising from  &EHFRHELLE
securities and futures B4 2 fEf
broking R 496,732 (77,015) 419,717 - - 419,717
760,180 (77,076) 683,104 - - 683,104
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

46.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company 46.

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

FREHBRR R

BRARARARERR 2B BRREKZ
BRT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

FRBEE
i YNGI P 3

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments AR

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkZERBS
Total current assets BREBEAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE

Other payables and accruals

Hith R R BRI R

Tax payable FEFI IR

Total current liabilities BREAaRE

NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE/(BF)FE
Net assets EEFE

EQUITY Em

Issued capital BETRA

Reserves (note) i (M)

Total equity mER

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing  FEXKH
Director S

Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Director

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
3,108,054 3,020,129
291 290
1,580 6,991
1,871 7,281
7,048 6,846

29 53

7,077 6,899
(5,206) 382
3,102,848 3,020,511
169,230 169,230
2,933,618 2,851,281
3,102,848 3,020,511

R
=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

46.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

At 1 January 2016

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Dividends declared and
paid during the year

At 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Profit and total
comprehensive income
for the year

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Dividends declared and
paid during the year

At 31 December 2017

46. ERLQTHMBHEMAE(E)

BT -
ARAIFEBZBENT
Share Share option Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
BoaE  BRERE BB RE A &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET THET TET TET FHET
R-T—RE
—H—H 1,051,502 - 975,582 1,151,051 3,178,135
FRRENREE
Wiz 4a 8
- - - 61,190 61,190
RS v BIRE
2 - 4,570 = - 4,570
FERNE K KA E
— — - (392,614) (392,614)
RZZE—RF
+-A=+-8
—TtF
—H—H 1,051,502 4,570 975,582 819,627 2,851,281
FEREMN&EEE
Yoo FR R
- - - 371,137 371,137
REmEE 7 BIRE
2 - 9,045 - - 9,045
FRE R RS
- - - (297,845) (297,845)
RZT—+F
+=ZA=+—8H 1,051,502 13,615 975,582 892,919 2,933,618

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganization and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganization scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

ARAR—NN_FEEZHABEHKE
AEEEHR  HREEAFIEE AR
ARMEERRKBREARERZEE
BEMEZEHE -

BEBRE-NN—FRRE EETE

AT BABRBAI DK TR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

47.

Particulars of Subsidiaries 47. MEARFE
Information about subsidiaries is as follows: MERRZERIT
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ry EBRIZTERE A28 frdh
8 AR R SEf AR A< REB DL TEEY
Direct Indirect
HE %
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
il ND RBRAREE 600,000 %71 REZER
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEESHERDA & 5,000,000 7T REZR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of ~ HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* China/Mainland China
BEE(FR)EEERQF * REARAME, 1,500,000,000 87T REHE
B AR
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Commodities Limited
BAEEERERAR & 5,000,000 7T R
Chow Sang Sang Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Corporate Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERERAA B 1,000,000 % 7T PEERHE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB10,000,000 - 100  Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China
BELER(ER)BRARY REARIAME, 10,000,000 TARE BRITE
B A RE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd*" China/Mainland China
FEEEA( LB BARAR hEARKAE 10,000,000 % 7T EBREE
B AR
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
[EEE M EER AR B 15,000,000 % 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Futures broking
BAEEHEERAF BB 5,000,000 7T, Mg
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEE(REERARES) REERRES 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAT
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100  Investment holding
BAEEEEERAR & 250 7T REZER

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
AEERBEBEERAERADA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

47.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

47.

Issued ordinary

HE L RFE ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTEZERE QA frdh .
=L BN $:4 EITEN BRERDL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE G
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100  Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
B A BRR (B ) B IR A A) B,/ P EIARE 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
EEEREBRAR BB 2,500,000 % 7T REER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
(China) Co. Ltd.
BEEKE T (PE)ER AR HBER RS 17T TEex
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEEETRE (PR BRAR N 18T M EHERERYE
RIRE R
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited retail of jewellery
BAEERESTARAA BB 30,000,00078 7T KRERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
FAEEKRE(BILBERAR* REARLME,  275,307,50047T GESENHE
B A RE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Pte Ltd Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
CApIL 2T EEE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BEERE(FR)BRAA EEARIEFME, 20,000,000 TARE RESUERHE
B RE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.*" China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BEEHRE ST (PRA) hEARLNE, 24,400,000 87T KRERENHE
BRAEY B AR
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ Us$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taiwan
BEERETROARAR EEHARES/ 50,000 % 7T KEHE
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AEERBEBEERAERADA

e

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
2017 %



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

47.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

47. MEBARFEREE)

Percentage

Issued ordinary

of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTEZERE QA frdh .
=L B ES:E AR A BRERDL TEXEK
Direct Indirect
HE G
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
International Limited
L EHBEE AR AR ERERRES 17T REZR
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of
nominee services
BAEEREABRAT BB 1,000,000 8 7T RERE RS
Chow Sang Sang Property Netherlands Antilles/ US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings N.V. Hong Kong
GG VS 30,000 %7T WERE
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100  Property investment
BAEEEXERAT & 10,000,000 47T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BHEAEESERAF EE 10,000,000/ 7T BHEL
Emphasis Jewellery Company Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Limited
HEmIABEFRAR d! 25,000 2T KRETE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People's Republic of RMB1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited*** China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
LTV 4 5 B 5 46 REARZEANE, 1,000,000 TARE RESERHE
AREF AR B A B
Fullink Developments Inc. British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
EBERTES 17T Rt
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited* authentication
BEEEAMEREEROERD A" i 100,000 57T BOMERET
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TRERERARDA ABEARES/ 100,000 % 7T KEML
B A B
World Commercial Sales Company Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Limited precious metals
HRABTHRAF BB 2,500,000 % 7T EoBIE
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Dormant
Bk 28T TEEx
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MRS AR

47.

48.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

* These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the
law of the People’s Republic of China

Acquired during the year ended 31 December 2016

## Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2017

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors on 27 March 2018.

47. MEBARFEREE)

* WEREDREFEARAMBEZZM
ZEHNEEELE

# REE-E—AFE+-A=+—BIEE
Pl

" RBE-2-EFT-AST-ALFE
LAY

! RBLZXEREBRT - LK EHEIEH
RERBROBBRERAES—FKE
RAIEZ

48. BIBREZ#Z

AMBHREN_Z-NF=A-TLAK
ESelRNRET -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

As at 31 December 2017

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

P s

RZT—tF+=-A=+—H

AEERFAHOIRYEFENAT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1 B SR A% EEEE BE HE
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RBFEAR)
Hong Kong
&k
# 229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  31,225*% Commercial Short
NERHE - N52E =)z [EES 53
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 2177
NESFSLEZ-_AEZ -\ TEHE i/ B A [EES H
* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, H.H.I.L. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Kowloon 447 s A
NEAMESENTAZ -SRI TR—IE BA mE H
* Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use 1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NERTEAN=_51T — LKA b =)z EES H
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 Rental 551* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon s.ARP. &
EEEH-NNRTEBABEXRR 5.B.ss.2 gl FE H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use 10,836* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
ERAE-=—% 2 ZEBANBE- i/ ER [EES 5]
g RERNEARE
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, A11, A13, N.K.I.L. 35155 C, Own use 38,440 Industrial Medium
1/F, Unit A6, 2/F, Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, D&F
10/F, Block A, 489-491 Castle Peak Road,
Kowloon
EBLEN \NENA—FAE—EA Ef I% R

A2 A3 A4 A6 A8 ATl AIZE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2017

P s

RZT—tF+=-A=+—H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE iR Jii}eS BEEE BE )
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFAR)
Hong Kong
N
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No. ~ K.L.L. 10223 Rental/own use ~ N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
NEALEE-StE-SARFLELT B/ 8A TEA B H
Bt Rt oRRMEEM =K
A+t
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208  Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
NEGEEH-RANE - NREZRHE atic} TER By &
B162 58 &
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s.AR.P. Rental/own use  9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
NERHEAN-—EANZRTE=E B/ 8A [EES H
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 3,255 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
HRATATURENTER2E =i [EE3 s
* Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Own use 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
NEAFEAN-NZN=ZHMT B4 BA [EE3 s
* Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
MAXBERELTEL T\ TBH BA [EE3 s
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial Medium
350 Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
ERNEE-NEREHAN T 28NS i [EE3 s
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2017

Description Lot Number

BE it RS

Use

ik

P s

RZT—tF+=-A=+—H

Gross
Floor Area

BEER

Type
BE

Lease
Term

HH

Mainland China
T KB

Unit 501, Block 4, Meile Village, Rongshan 100100-047
Community Association, Ronggui Street
Representative Office, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BREAGLUTIEES EHEREESIL
ELES e

Own use

8A

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RAFAR)

1,010

Residential

=

FE

Medium

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun 154077-014
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province
BREAFLTIRERGHAZNERR
EIRE R A

Rental

i

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

I%/m%

Medium

* Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150 134092-003
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province
EREGUMIEEEARESER —ATH
EBREAE—H2—

Own use

Eh

1,906

Commercial

[EES

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2,  2310-7-50
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMTRIREHAEA-STTR_R
ENBREGBELTAE

Own use

=)

23,686

Commercial

GRS

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201, 2310-7-50
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
BREBMTRAIREHAEA-STHR_R
ENBRFESA-_E-_TTN _THEHE[

Own use

S

N/A

NEH

Car park

By

Medium

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B, 10501060004-17
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road, High-
tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi Province

PRTGE 70 % T = 37 [ 2 S B — SR P PR 030
BE+ARE—RE—E—RT_=

Own use

B

5,025

Commercial

[GE

Medium
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AEERBEBEERAERADA

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

2017 %



PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD
As at 31 December 2017

P s

RZT—tF+=-A=+—H

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE iR Jic}eS BEEE BE )
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFAR)
Mainland China
E KR
Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement ~ 10501060004-17 Own use N/A Car park Medium
and Car Parking Space No. F061,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No.1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province
BRPGE PE 22 T =0 T . o5 HLE B — 7% B B PR 43 =l A B M
WHF—EEEDET—FREL T
ZEEEFREANREN
No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town, 164084-189 Own use 377,726 Industrial Medium
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province
BERAE LT IEEE mEEN BN =5 g/ I¥% i
Taiwan
)
Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. ~ 0568-0000 Own use 6,847 Commercial Freehold
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.O.C.
FERBEZESITEERDZRERR Sl EES KAERE
Tt RtE-E B
Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in 0568-0000 Own use N/A Car park Freehold
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.
FEREZESITEERLZRERR S TiEm B KAERE

Tt TITRAE—=_R—==%EH

Location of branches
DITHE

Saleable area
EEEE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar
Announcement of 2017 interim results: 29 August 2017
2017 interim dividend payment: 22 September 2017

Announcement of 2017 annual results: 27 March 2018

5 June to 8 June 2018
(both days inclusive)

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting: 8 June 2018

14 June to 19 June 2018
(both days inclusive)

Closure of register of members for
final dividend:

2017 final dividend payment: 26 June 2018

Share Information

Stock code on The Stock Exchange of 116
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size: 1,000 shares

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building,

69 Pitts Bay Road,

Pembroke HM 08,

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2980-1333

Facsimile: +852 2810-8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department

27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683

Email: ir@chowsangsang.com
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BRBER
REBBHARZIER 116
RNAZ DR

BFEEE[ 1,000 /i

BRERDBFECAR

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building,

69 Pitts Bay Road,

Pembroke HM 08,

Bermuda

BEERNBFELIE
FEBRKERAAF
BEERANEBR—/\=%

aNmL T8

B\ +852 2980-1333

BE: +8522810-8185

BE:  is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REERFR
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BERNERDE
KEENKR=+LE

B|E:  +8522991-0366
BE: +8522730-9683
BEH:  ir@chowsangsang.com
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